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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. SURESH GUPTA, CHAIRMAN

Mr. Suresh Gupta did his Masters in Management (MMS) from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management Studies, Mumbai. He 
has diverse management experience of over 42 years, including 29 years in the Company. Mr. Suresh Gupta is the Chairman 
of the Company from 10th March, 2010.

MR. ARUNKUMAR GANDHI, INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales, Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) and also an Associate Member of the Chartered Institute of Taxation, London. He has been an 
Independent Director of the Company since March 2002. Mr. Gandhi worked with N. M. Raiji & Co., Chartered Accountants, as 
a partner from 1969 and in 1993 became a Senior Partner upto July 2003. As partner, Mr. Gandhi audited several public sector 
and private sector entities and is an expert on share valuation and corporate restructuring. Over the last 21 years, Mr. Gandhi 
served on the Boards of various Indian and foreign companies.

MR. RAMESH KUMAR DHIR, INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhir is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants, England & Wales and also a Fellow 
of the Institute of Management (U.K.). He has wide corporate management experience of over 44 years working with Peat 
Marwick, London and a US Multinational with operations in India and overseas. He is a past President and on the Board of 
Council for Fair Business Practices. He is also a member of Maharashtra State General Committee of the Indian Red Cross 
Society. He has been an Independent Director of the Company since March 2002.

MR. S K PALEKAR, INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. S K Palekar did his M.Sc. (Physics) from Mumbai University & MMS (Marketing) from Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of 
Management Studies. He secured 1st rank, both in M.Sc (Physics) & MMS (Marketing). He is currently the Chairperson of 
Executive Education Centre of S P Jain Institute of Management & Research at Mumbai. He brings with him over 40 years 
of experience in all aspects of marketing – like sales, advertising, market research, brand management – and also of general 
management. He has hands on experience in FMCG, durables & service Industry. He retired as Senior Vice President of 
Marketing & Knowledge Management from Eureka Forbes Limited; after serving there for over a decade. He has been an 
Independent Director of the Company since March 2011.

MR. NRIPJIT SINGH CHAWLA, INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla did his MBA from Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta. He has wide corporate management 
experience of over 47 years working with ITC Ltd., Korn/Ferry International, Max India Ltd. He is currently acting as an 
Independent Management Consultant to Commercial organizations and NGO’s in the areas of Marketing, Business strategy 
and Business Processes, Education, Tourism and Hospitality, Healthcare etc. He has served as a member of the teaching 
faculty in some of the premium Business Schools and Management Institutes. He has been an Independent Director of the 
Company since March 2013.

MS. SUKANYA KRIPALU, INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Ms. Sukanya Kripalu has done her graduation in Mathematics from St. Xavier’s College and has completed her MBA from 
Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta. She has 27 years of marketing and management experience. She has been involved 
in the launch and marketing successes of several leading consumer brands at FMCG Companies such as Nestle, Cadbury 
and Kellogg’s. She was a CEO of Quadra Advisory, a WPP group Company. She works as an consultant in marketing strategy, 
brand and advertising development as well as marketing training. Her experience covers industries such as Insurance, White 
Goods, Jewellery, Textiles, Branded Staples, FMCG and Media. She was appointed as an Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f. 17th March, 2015.

MR. JUKKA MOISIO, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Jukka Moisio holds Masters degree in Science and (Econ) and MBA. He has worked with Ahlstrom Corp (1991-2008) 
before joining Huhtamaki Oyj in the year 2008. He is currently the CEO and Chairman of Group Executive Team of Huhtamaki 
Oyj. He has been nominated as Director by Huhtavefa B.V. on Board of Directors of the Company w.e.f. 23rd April, 2008.

MR. OLLI KOPONEN, NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Olli Koponen holds a Masters Degree in Engineering Automation and Information Technology. He has worked previously 
with Systecon Oy before joining Huhtamaki Oyj in the year 1990. He is presently holding position as Executive Vice President, 
Flexible Packaging. Based on the nomination received from Huhtavefa B V, he has been appointed as Additional Director on 
the Board of the Company w.e.f. 17th December, 2015.

MR. A VENKATRANGAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. A Venkatrangan is a Commerce Graduate and MBA in Finance and Marketing, having a total experience of over 36 years. 
He has worked in Corporate Planning, Costing, MIS, Budget Control, Operations, Internal Audit and Commercial functions at 
various levels with Murugappa and Essar Group. He joined the Company in January 1999 and was inducted on the Board of 
our Company in July 2012 and is currently the Managing Director of the Company.
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Financial Performance Indicators
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Financial Highlights

(` in lacs)

Particulars 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

OPERATING RESULTS

Net Sales  215,410  200,975  121,434  107,480  89,318  79,730  70,401  57,769  61,209  53,206 

Other Income  4,091  4,187  2,025  1,560  1,567  1,426  832  911  1,173  1,074 

EBDIT  26,435  24,653  12,830  11,947  9,797  9,455  7,927  8,186  6,090  6,768 

Depreciation & Amortisation  9,097  9,053  4,386  4,202  3,565  3,204  3,240  3,115  2,862  2,886 

EBIT  17,338  15,600  8,445  7,745  6,232  6,251  4,687  5,071  3,228  3,882 

Profit before Tax Exceptional & 
Extraordinary Items

 14,008  11,563  8,135  7,370  6,173  6,247  4,627  4,958  2,977  3,697 

Exceptional & Extraordinary 
Items - Net of Tax

(255)  -    628  705  -    294  1,533  -    -   (318)

Provision for Tax  5,238  3,690  1,911  2,293  1,661  1,281  1,348  1,220  848  541 

Profit for the year  
(after minority interest)

 8,515  7,693  6,660  5,621  4,508  5,260  4,812  3,738  2,129  2,837 

EBDIT to Sales % 12.27% 12.27% 10.57% 11.12% 10.97% 11.86% 11.26% 14.17% 9.95% 12.72%

EBIT to Sales % 8.05% 7.76% 6.95% 7.21% 6.98% 7.84% 6.66% 8.78% 5.27% 7.30%

PBT to Sales % 6.38% 5.75% 7.22% 7.51% 6.91% 8.20% 8.75% 8.58% 4.86% 6.35%

Earning Per Share 11.27 10.58 10.04 8.97 7.19 8.39 7.68 5.96 3.40 4.53

Cash Earning Per Share 23.32 23.03 16.64 15.67 12.88 13.50 12.84 10.93 7.96 9.13

Equity Dividend % 150.00 140.00 140.00 140.00 130.00 120.00 110.00 ***150.00 90.00 90.00

FINANCIAL POSITION

Equity Share Capital  1,454  1,454  1,454  1,254  1,254  1,254  1,254  1,254  1,254  1,254 

Share Suspense  56  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Reserves & Surplus  45,874  60,414  55,294  37,827  34,242  31,629  28,112  24,901  23,363  22,573 

Shareholders Funds  47,384  61,868  56,748  39,081  35,496  32,883  29,366  26,155  24,617  23,827 

Minority Interest  -    2,383  2,203  2,013  1,852  -    -    -    -    -   

Loan Funds  43,628  52,864  4,194  4,620  5,186  2,159  2,253  2,393  4,981  6,715 

Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability 
(Net)

(314)  424  549  99  68  252 526 677 690 852

Goodwill on Consolidation  -    22,716  1,957  1,957  1,957  -    -    -    -    -   

Net Fixed  Assets (Incl.Capital 
work in Progress)

 45,874  53,135  26,166  22,323  22,788  18,230  17,869  20,335  21,055  21,451 

Investments  19,502  20,663  18,634  5,479  6,038  6,338  3,945  3,103  1,698  1,381 

Current Assets  76,939  68,393  41,256  36,491  29,608  27,257 25095 20940 20192 20561

Current Liabilities  51,617  47,367  24,319  20,437  17,788  16,531 14763 15153 12657 11999

Net Assets ( Current & Non 
Current)

 25,322  21,025  16,937  16,054  11,820  10,726  10,332  5,787  7,535  8,562 

Capital Employed  90,698  117,539  63,693  45,813  42,602  35,294  32,145  29,225  30,288  31,394 

Results from 2007 to 2011 are Standalone results

Results from 2012 to 2015 are consolidated results. Consolidated results include Webtech Labels Private Limited from 2012 
and Positive Packaging Indusries Limited from 2015.

Results for 2016 are Standalone merged results on account of merger of Positive Packaging Industries Limited and Webtech 
Labels Private Limited with the Company.

*** Includes One Time Dividend @ 50%
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Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 67th Annual Report along with the Audited Statements of Accounts for the year 
ended 31st December, 2016.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Your Company’s financial performance during the year was as follows:

(` in lacs)

Particulars  2016* 2015* 
(Consolidated)

 2015* 
(Standalone)

Net Sales 215,410 200,975 114,059

Profit before Tax & Exceptional Item 14,008 11,563 6,848

Profit before Tax 13,752 11,563 6,848

Less:	Provision for Current Tax 5,974 3,674 1,988

	 Provision for Deferred Tax (737) 16 (51)

Less: Share of Minority Intrest - 180 -

Profit after Tax 8,515 7,693 4,911

Add: 	balance of profit for earlier years 23,800 24,127 23,756

Add: 	Profit and Loss balance transferred pursuant to Amalgamation 7,124 - -

Profit available for appropriation 39,439 31,820 28,667

Transfer to General Reserve 887 492 492

Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve 1,925 1,925 1,925

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares & Dividend Tax thereon 2,784 2,450 2,450

Balance Carried forward 33,843 26,953 23,800

*Previous year figures are not comparable with current year, since current year figures include full year figures of erstwhile 
Positive Packaging Industries Limited (“Positive”) and Webtech Labels Private Limited (“Webtech”) consequent to their merger 
with Huhtamaki PPL Ltd (HPPL). In view of that, we have included the 2015 Consolidated numbers, for ease of comparison.

DIVIDEND:

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of ` 3/- (Rupees three only) per equity share (@150%) having face value 
of `2/- each, for the year ended 31st December, 2016. The said dividend, including dividend of ` 57 lakh (which includes ` 17 
lakh as Dividend Distribution Tax) declared or paid by erstwhile Webtech Labels Private Limited, will absorb an amount of ` 
2,784 lakh, including the dividend distribution tax and cess thereon.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company did not invite or accept deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and there are no deposits 
pending with the Company.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

Debenture Redemption Reserve is created to the extent of 25% of the Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) equally, over the 
period till maturity of the NCDs, as per the requirements of the applicable laws. Further, an amount of ` 887 lakh has been 
transferred to the General Reserve.

MERGER :

Pursuant to the approval of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, erstwhile subsidiaries of the Company viz., 
Positive Packaging Industries Limited and Webtech Labels Private Limited, merged into the Company effective 1st April, 2017. 
Further, pursuant to the said merger, 28,10,000 equity shares of the Company were allotted to the shareholders of Webtech 
Labels in the ratio of 281 equity shares of ` 2/- each of the Company, for every 1 equity share of ` 10/- each of Webtech Labels 
Private Limited, held by them.

After the merger of erstwhile Positive and Webtech, your company has emerged as one of the largest entities in the flexible 
packaging industry in Afro–Asian region. We have, over the past two years, integrated key functions of Marketing, NASP, 
Procurement and Supply Chain Management and achieved significant synergies. However, we had to function as separate 
legal entities, pending the merger. Completion of this legal merger will help us to align business processes, improve controls, 
simplify the reporting needs and further streamline our Corporate Governance standards.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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COMMISSIONING OF NEW MANUFACTURING UNITS:

In line with our philosophy of servicing our customers better, we have established two new manufacturing units in North East 
India – in Guwahati for Flexibles and in Sikkim for Pressure Sensitive Labels. Both these units have been established to service 
our customers who have their manufacturing plants in the North East. These units have gone into commercial production from 
March 2017.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Pursuant to the allotment of shares, consequent to the merger of erstwhile Webtech Labels Private Limited with the Company 
in April 2017, the paid-up share capital of the Company has increased from ` 1454 lakh to ` to ` 1510 lakh. 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

Since both the subsidiaries have been merged with the Company pursuant to Order of the National Company Law Tribunal, 
Mumbai Bench, your Company does not have any subsidiaries and hence Form AOC-1 is not applicable.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial statements, and related 
information of the Company are available on the website of the Company - www.ppl.huhtamaki.com. These documents will be 
made available to the Members for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company up to the date of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
S R B C & CO LLP, Chartered Accountants (SRBC) were appointed as Statutory Auditors for a term of five years to hold 
office from the conclusion of 65th Annual General Meeting up to the conclusion of the 70th Annual General Meeting, subject to 
ratification at every Annual General Meeting.

The approval of members is being sought for ratification of appointment of SRBC as Statutory Auditors of the Company to 
examine and audit the accounts of the Company for the Financial Year 2017.

The Auditors’ Report to the Members on the Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2016 does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO :

Information pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder, relating to 
conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo, forms part of this Report and is given 
at Annexure 1.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT :

As per Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, 2015 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Business Responsibility Report forms part of this Report and is annexed hereto.

The Business Responsibility Report of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2016 in line with the green initiative 
is available on the website of the Company http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies and forms part 
of this Report and is kept at the registered office of the Company for inspection. A copy of the aforesaid report shall be made 
available to such shareholders who are desirous of and interested in perusing them, upon receipt of a written request from 
them.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

The Report on Corporate Governance and the Certificate of the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of the conditions 
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Part C of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, 2015, are enclosed as a separate 
section and forms part of this Report. A declaration signed by the Managing Director in regard to compliance with the Code of 
Conduct by the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel also forms part of this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

A detailed review of the operations, performance and future outlook of the Company and its businesses are given in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, and forms a part of this Report.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Olli Koponen, retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Further, as stipulated under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations, 2015, his brief 
resume, is given in the section on Corporate Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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Further, at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company held on 30th March, 2017, the shareholders approved 
the re-appointment of Independent Directors, Mr Arun Gandhi, Mr. N S Chawla, Mr. S K Palekar and Ms. Sukanya Kripalu for a 
tenure of 3 years and that of Mr. Ramesh Dhir for a tenure of 1 year. Further, the shareholders at the said EGM also approved 
the re-appointment of Mr. Suresh Gupta, Executive Chairman for a period of 2 years.

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OF DIRECTORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015 the Board of Directors has undertaken 
an annual evaluation of its own performance, its various Committees and individual directors. The manner in which the 
performance evaluation has been carried out has been given in detail in the Corporate Governance Report, annexed to this 
Report.

The policy of the Company on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive 
attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under Section 178(3) of the Act, and Part D of Schedule 
II of the Listing Regulations, adopted by the Board is appended as Annexure 2 to the Directors’ Report. We affirm that the 
remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid out in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS :

Your Company has put in place a Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors to familiarize them with their roles, 
rights, responsibilities, nature of the Industry, Company’s strategy, business plan, operations, markets, products, etc. The 
details of the Company’s Familiarisation Programme is available on the Company’s website - web link: http://www.huhtamaki.
com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Company has received necessary declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they 
meet the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

During the year, nine meetings of the Board of Directors were held, particulars of attendance of directors at the said meetings 
are detailed in the report on Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT :

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors state that :

a.	 in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2016, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed along with no material departures;

b.	 appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and based on judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st December, 
2016 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c.	 proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities;

d.	 the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e.	 proper internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f.	 the proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws are in place and were adequate and 
operating effectively.

COST AUDITORS :

The Board has appointed M/s. R. Nanabhoy & Co., Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the Cost 
Audit for the Financial year 2017. Members approval is being sought for ratification of their remuneration as Cost Auditors of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2017.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR :

The Board has appointed M/s. S.N. Ananthasubramanian & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit 
for the Financial year 2016. The Secretarial Audit Report in prescribed format is annexed as Annexure 3 to this Report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed to this Report as Annexure 4.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms part of 
this report. Further, the report and the financial statements are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid statement. 
Further, in terms of provisions of Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent 
to the members of the Company. The said information is open for inspection at the registered office of the Company during 
working hours and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary and the same 
will be furnished on request. Further the Annual Report including the aforesaid information is also available on the Company’s 
website www.ppl.huhtamaki.com.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES :

Your Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions which is also available on Company’s website at http://
www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf. This policy deals with the review and approval of related party 
transactions. The Board of Directors of the Company has approved the criteria for making omnibus approval by the Audit 
Committee within the overall framework of the policy on related party transactions. Prior omnibus approval is obtained for 
related party transactions which are of repetitive nature and entered in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length 
basis. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval.

All related party transactions entered during the Financial Year were in ordinary course of the business and on arm’s length 
basis. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract/arrangement/transaction with related parties which could 
be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. Accordingly, 
the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 2 is 
not applicable to your Company. However, members may refer to Notes to the financial statement which sets out related party 
disclosures pursuant to the Accounting Standards.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS :

The Company has not granted any loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013, for the financial year ended 31st December, 2016.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY :

Your Company is committed to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and strongly believes that the business objectives of the 
Company must be in congruence with the legitimate development needs of the society in which it operates. The Company has 
implemented various CSR projects in the areas like:

•	 Community & Societal Development;

•	 Promotion of education & skill development; and

•	 Promoting healthcare, including preventive healthcare.

This is in accordance with Schedule VII of the Act, and a detailed report on CSR activities is given in Annexure 5, forming part 
of this Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), your Company has constituted a CSR 
Committee to monitor the CSR activities of the Company, details of which are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, 
forming part of this Report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN :

Extract of Annual Return of the Company in prescribed format is annexed herewith as Annexure 6 to this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT & INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS :

The Company has in place mechanism to inform Board Members about the Risk Assessment and Minimization procedures 
which are periodically reviewed to ensure that risk is controlled by the Executive Management.

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are given in the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which forms part of this Report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY :

The Company has in place a Whistleblower Policy with a view to provide a mechanism for its directors/employees to approach 
the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in case of any grievances or concern. The Whistleblower Policy can be accessed on the 
Company’s website http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY:

SEBI Listing Regulations requires that the top 500 listed companies based on market capitalization to formulate Dividend 
Distribution Policy. In compliance of the said requirement, the Company has formulated its Dividend Distribution Policy, the 
details of which is given in Annexure 7 to this Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such policies and procedures 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. The Audit Committee evaluates the internal 
financial control system periodically.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and as per the requirement of the Sexual Harassment 
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Rules made thereunder, has constituted an 
Internal Complaints Committees (ICC). During the year, one case was reported to the ICC which was duly addressed, resolved 
and disposed of, in accordance with the Company’s Policy and the said Act.

HUMAN RESOURCES (HR):

The Company’s HR policies and procedures are designed to recruit and retain the best talent to support the operations of your 
Company and to align the interests of all employees with the long term organisational goals.

OTHER DISCLOSURES/REPORTING:

Your Directors state that no disclosure and/or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions 
on these items during the year under review:

•	 Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;

•	 Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme;

•	 Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive remuneration or commission from 
any of its subsidiaries;

•	 No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern 
status and Company’s operations in future;

•	 Except for the merger of its subsidiaries with the Company, there have been no material changes and commitments, if any, 
affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company 
to which the Financial Statements relate and the date of this Report;

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board wishes to place on record its gratitude for the assistance and co-operation received from Banks, Government 
Authorities, Customers, Vendors and all its shareholders for the trust and confidence reposed in the Company. The Board 
further wishes to record its sincere appreciation for the significant contributions made by employees at all levels for their 
commitment, dedication and contribution towards the operations of the Company. Further, the Board would also like to 
congratulate all employees for achieving an important milestone of successful completion of the Integration exercise.

By Order of the Board
For Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.

Suresh Gupta, 
Place : Mumbai	 Chairman
Date: 20th April, 2017 	 (DIN No.:00235354)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Contd.)
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)

ANNEXURE – 1
Conservation of energy, research and development, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
(Particulars pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

A.	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

	 The Company has a well organized, structured and centrally controlled energy management system for machine, utility 
and infrastructure. Regular focus and efforts are made to improve machine efficiency and accuracy by modernization or 
replacement of Plant & Machinery of high end Technology.

	 Some of the key initiatives for conserving energy during 2016 were :

	 •	 Lighting is controlled by automated timers and focus on use of natural light. 

	 •	 Low power consumption and high luminance LED base lights are used for office, factory and street lights.

	 •	 Ancillary equipments are also controlled by adding precise control other than safety equipments.

	 •	 Replacement of old with new efficient utility equipment with variable frequency control.

	 •	 Water consumption is controlled and saved by measuring and recycling using modern equipments.

	 •	 Focus on training and awareness to use equipments and machinery to improve production, to minimize risk and 
energy consumption.

B.	 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTION & INNOVATION

	 Your company has always strived to develop new designs for packaging that meets customer and market needs. The 
Research & Development Centre (R&D) of the company located at Thane is recognized by the Department of Scientific 
and Industrial Research, Government of India. The centre carries out various R&D activities to enhance the knowledge 
base, absorbs relevant new technology, assess application of new raw materials. These are the building blocks of our New 
Product Development Philosophy – NASP (New Applications, Structures, Products / Processes). And thus, maintaining 
technology leadership through new product innovation and providing smarter technological solutions to the market. 
Sustainability and convenience are the leading concerns in modern day packaging. Your company is continually working 
to reduce material usage to make it more sustainable. New convenient pouch designs with twin chambers, effective and 
attractive shapes, thermoformed container, labels and sleeves with enhanced graphics and applications are being offered 
to the market to improve convenience Your company is actively working on ‘green technologies’ like reduction of solvent 
usage, recovery of spent solvents. The company is actively working on to bring new products through flexible packaging 
into the market. Company considers human safety at work and protection to environment is of supreme importance and 
as an organisation we have been practicing the same in spirit all our locations have achieved necessary certifications.

	 The company has been recognized for its innovative efforts by several packaging organisations and is awarded with 11 
awards for the year including two Worldstar awards.

	 The expenditure on R&D during the year under report is as below:

	 a. 	 Capital 		  `     2 lacs
	 b. 	 Recurring	 ` 104 lacs

		  Total 		  ` 106 lacs

	 Apart from the above, the Company spends a sizeable amount of money & resources on product development, which is 
not covered in the amount reported hereinabove. 

C.	 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

	 The Company is continuously striving to build a technology leadership position in the flexible packaging industry. There 
is a strong focus on research and development through a dedicated team in R&D. The R&D team is working closely with 
customers in developing cost-effective packaging solutions. 

	 The R&D team is actively involved in identifying suitable base films, polymers, adhesives, inks, etc., to satisfy the 
sophisticated flexible packaging requirements of customers.

D.	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

	 a.	 Foreign exchange earnings from the exports of the Company’s products & services amounted to ` 52,637 lacs.

	 b.	 The outflow of foreign exchange on account of import of raw materials, stores, spares, capital goods, expenses on 
travelling, commission on exports, and technical Service charges amounted to ` 46,531 lacs. 

By Order of the Board
For Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.

Suresh Gupta,
Chairman 

 (DIN No.:00235354)
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)

ANNEXURE – 2
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF HUHTAMAKI PPL LIMITED

1.	  PREAMBLE: 

	 a.	 The Nomination and Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) provides a framework for remuneration to be paid to the members 
of the Board of Directors (“Board”) and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and the Senior Management Personnel 
(“SMP”) of Huhtamaki PPL Limited (‘the Company”). 

	 b.	 This Policy has been framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“Committee”) of the Board of Directors 
(“Board”) and based on its recommendation, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee is entitled to review and amend this policy, if necessary, subject to Board approval. 

2.	 OBJECTIVE:

	 The Policy aims to enable the Company to attract, retain and motivate high quality members for the Board and executives 
by providing a well-balanced and performance-related compensation package, taking into account all stakeholders’ 
interests, risks & opportunities, industry practices and relevant corporate regulations. The Policy shall be read along with 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the applicable rules thereto and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

3.	 CRITERIA FOR IDENTIFICATION OF THE BOARD MEMBERS AND APPOINTMENTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

	 a.	 The Members of the Board shall be persons who possess appropriate qualifications, skills, aptitude, attributes, 
maturity, knowledge and experience. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background and experience 
in management functions or in such areas as may be considered relevant or desirable to conduct the Company’s 
business in an ethical and competitively superior manner.

	 b.	 An Independent Director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience and who 
shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and constructively; exercise responsibilities in a 
bona-fide manner in the best interests of the company; devote sufficient time and attention to professional obligations 
for informed and balanced decision-making; and assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance 
practices. An Independent Director should meet the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the 
Listing Agreement concerning independence of directors. 

	 c.	 The candidate for the appointment of KMP and SMP should possess appropriate qualifications, skills, aptitude, 
attributes, with relevant work experience. The candidate for KMP and SMP should also possess high level of personal 
and professional ethics, integrity and values.

4.	 POLICY RELATING TO REMUNERATION :

	 I)	 POLICY FOR WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS/MANAGING DIRECTOR/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL - 

		  Remuneration to Whole-Time Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel will involve 
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the 
Company and its goals. The break-up of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites and retiral benefits shall be decided 
and approved by the Board/the Person authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and 
approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required. If, in any financial year, the Company has 
no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 II)	 POLICY FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS -

		  a.	 Independent Directors shall receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for attending meetings of Board or 
Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed ` One Lac per meeting of the Board 
or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

		  b.	 Independent Directors may be paid Commission within the monetary limit approved by shareholders, subject 
to the limit not exceeding 1% of the profits of the Company, computed as per the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Independent Directors shall not be entitled to any stock options of the Company.
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)

ANNEXURE – 3
Form No. MR – 3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st DECEMBER, 2016

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members, 
Huhtamaki PPL Limited
CIN: L21011MH1950FLC145537
12A–06, B–Wing, 13th Floor, Parinee Crescenzo,
C-38/39, G–Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051.

We have conducted Secretarial Audit of compliance with the applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate 
practices by Huhtamaki PPL Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books and papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the 
audit period covering the Financial Year ended 31st December, 2016 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also, that the Company has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the Financial Year ended 31st December, 2016 according to the provisions of: 

i.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

v.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):

	 a.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

	 b.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

	 c.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

	 d.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

	 e.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

	 f.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; – Not applicable as the Company is not registered as 
Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agent during the year under review;

	 g.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 – Not applicable as 
there was no reportable event during the year under review; and

	 h.	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 – Not applicable as there 
was no reportable event during the year under review.

vi.	 The Company has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically applicable to the Company:

	 a.	 The Petroleum Act,1934;

	 b.	 The Legal Metrology Act, 2009, Rules and Regulations there under; 

	 c.	 The Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules,1989;
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)

	 d.	 The Plastic Waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 2011;

	 e.	 The Solvent Raffinate and Slop (Acquisition, Sale, Storage and Prevention of use in Automobile) Order, 2000.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following:

a.	 Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

b.	 The Listing Agreements entered by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited and 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with provisions of the Act, Rules, applicable Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

Ø	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act; 

Ø	 Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
atleast seven days in advance and wherever the meetings were called at a shorter notice, consent of the Directors were 
obtained. A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting;

Ø	 All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried out with requisite majority.

We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of the 
Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), 
we are of the opinion that the management has adequate systems and processes commensurate with its size and operations, 
to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

Ø	 As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from statutory / regulatory authorities including 
by taking corrective measures wherever found necessary.

We further report that during the review period following specific events / actions having a bearing on the Company’s affairs 
in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc;

Ø	 At the Annual General Meeting held on 10th May, 2016, the members approved the Huhtamaki PPL Limited Employee 
Phantom Stock Scheme 2015 (‘PS Scheme”), pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014 and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Ø	 The Company has changed the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents from Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited to 
TSR Darashaw Limited and obtained approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on 10th May, 2016 by 
way of Special Resolution to keep the Register of members, Register and index of debenture holders and such Registers 
as may be required to be maintained under Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 together with copies of certificates and 
documents at the office of Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company.

Ø	 The Company has at a court convened meeting of Equity shareholders held on 21st June, 2016, obtained consent for:-

	 i.	 the proposed amalgamation and arrangement of Webtech Labels Private Limited with the Company; and

	 ii.	 reduction of the Securities Premium of the Company.

Ø	 The Company has at a court convened meeting of equity shareholders held on 21st June, 2016 have obtained consent for:-

	 i.	 The proposed amalgamation between the Company and Positive Packaging Industries Limited.

	 ii.	 Reduction of share capital of the Company pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement between the Company and Positive 
Packaging Industries Limited.

For S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN & CO.
Company Secretaries

S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN
Place: Thane										           Partner
Date: 20th April, 2017								         C.P. No: 1774
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)

To, 

The Members, 
Huhtamaki PPL Limited
CIN: L21011MH1950FLC145537
12A–06, B–Wing, 13th Floor, Parinee Crescenzo,
C-38/39, G–Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400 051.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility

1.	 It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate 
and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2.	 Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the 
Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3.	 We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and appropriate 
for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

Disclaimer

5.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

6.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

For S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN & CO.
Company Secretaries

S. N. ANANTHASUBRAMANIAN
Place: Thane										           Partner
Date: 20th April, 2017								         C.P. No: 1774
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)

ANNEXURE – 4
Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014

I.	 The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the 
financial year 2016, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the financial year 2016 and the comparison of remuneration of each Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 
against the performance of the Company are as under:

 (` in lacs)

Sr.
No.

Name of Director/ KMP and Designation Remuneration of 
Director/ KMP for 

Financial Year
(FY)

% increase in 
Remuneration 

in the Financial 
Year 2016

Ratio of 
remuneration

of each Director to 
median

1 Mr. Suresh Gupta, Executive Chairman 261.48 33.94% 79.3:1

2 Mr. A Venkatrangan, Managing Director 326.48 33.90% 98.9:1

3 Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi, Independent Director 41.15 NA 12.5:1

4 Mr. Ramesh Kumar Dhir, Independent Director 16.20 NA 4.9:1

5 Mr. S K Palekar Independent Director 24.65 NA 7.5:1

6 Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla Independent Director 18.90 NA 5.7:1

7 Ms. Sukanya Kripalu Independent Director 20.40 NA 6.1:1

8 Mr. Parag Vyavahare, Chief Financial Officer 102.18 15.90% 31.0:1

9 Mr. Dakshinamurthy Iyer, Company Secretary 37.91 NA* 11.5:1

* Was employed only for part of the year in 2015 and hence not comparable.

Note : 
•	 The Managing Director and CFO of the Company are entitled to shares under the “Share Ownership Plan” of Huhtamaki 

Oyj (the ultimate Holding company) which entitles them to receive shares at nil cost. The scheme detailed above is 
assessed, managed and administered by the ultimate holding company and there is no cost charged to the Company. The 
charge taken by Huhtamaki Oyj in its accounts for the year ended 31st December 2016 for these shares is `97,30,234/-

• 	 Remuneration paid to Independent Directors consists only sitting fees and Commission for FY 2016 in accordance with 
Section 197 (ii) of the Companies Act, 2013.

II.	 The percentage increase in median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was 9.64%

III.	 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on December 31, 2016 were 3263.

IV.	 The average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel was 9.7%, 
while the increase in the remuneration of managerial personnel was 30.9%. The aggregate limits of remuneration of 
managerial personnel was reviewed and revised, keeping in view the need for leveraging experience and expertise as well 
as rewarding talent and the prevailing trend in the industry.

V.	 It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

By Order of the Board
For Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.

Suresh Gupta,
Chairman 

 (DIN No.:00235354)
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)

ANNEXURE – 5
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the Financial Year 2016

1.	 A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs :

	 The CSR policy of the Company covers the proposed CSR activities in line with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Schedule VII thereto. The CSR Policy of the Company may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link 
http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf. 

2.	 The Composition of the CSR Committee is as under - 

	 Mr. Suresh Gupta 	 -	 Chairman
	 Mr. S K Palekar 	 - 	 Member
	 Mr. A Venkatrangan	 - 	 Member

3.	 Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years -

	 Pursuant to Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013, the average net profit of the Company for last three years is ` 7,443 
Lacs. Accordingly, the Company was required to spend an amount of ` 149 Lacs towards CSR activities. 

4.	 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (Two percent of amount as in Item no. 3) - 

	 The Company was required to spend an amount of ` 149 Lacs towards CSR activities for the Financial year 2016.

5.	  Details of CSR spent during the Financial Year -

	 a.	 Total amount spent for financial year - ` 58 Lacs*

	 b.	 Total amount unspent if any – ` 91 Lacs 

	 c.	 Manner in which the amount spent during financial year, is detailed below :

	 *The amount includes ` 9 Lacs spent by Positive Packaging Industries Limited (erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company), which has merged with the Company w.e.f. 1st April, 2017 and whose expenditure has been included in the 
revised accounts enclosed with the Directors Report. The details of spending by the said Positive Packaging Industries 
Limited, has been mentioned below :

Amount spent by the Company -

(` in lacs)

Sr.
No. 

CSR Project 
or Activity 
identified

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or programs
1) 	 Local Area or other 
2) 	 Specify the states 

or district where 
project or Program 
were undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise

Amount 
spent 
on the 

projects 
or 

programs

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency

1. Rural 
Electrification 

Rural 
Development 

Hyderabad (Telangana) 12 10 10 Direct

2 Installation of 
Water Purifier/
Coolers, 
education 
material, 
Playground 
equipment., 
solar panels 
with UPS, 
Computers in 
Schools and 
Painting in 
School,

Promotion of 
education 

Thane (Maharashtra)
Silvassa (U T of Dadra & 
Nagar Haveli, Silvassa) 
Rudrapur (Uttarakhand)

33 33 33 Direct
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(` in lacs)

Sr.
No. 

CSR Project 
or Activity 
identified

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or programs
1) 	 Local Area or other 
2) 	 Specify the states 

or district where 
project or Program 
were undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise

Amount 
spent 
on the 

projects 
or 

programs

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency

3 Children 
education 
& skill 
development, 
Scholarship 
to students, 
scholarship 
for 
economically 
weaker 
student

Promotion of 
education 

Thane (Maharashtra)
Rudrapur (Uttarakhand)

4 4 4 Direct

4 Providing 
beds in 
hospitals, 
Medical Kit 
with General 
Medicine 
along 
with other 
materials

Promoting 
Health care 
including 
preventive 
healthcare

Rudrapur (Uttarakhand) 2 2 2 Direct

Amount spent by Positive Packaging Industries Limited (erstwhile Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Company)- 

(` in lacs)

Sr.
No. 

CSR Project 
or Activity 
identified

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects or programs

1) 	 Local Area or 
other 

2) 	 Specify the states 
or district where 
project or Program 
were undertaken

Amount 
outlay 

(Budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise

Amount 
spent 
on the 

projects 
or 

programs

Cumulative 
Expenditure 

upto the 
reporting 

period

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 

implementing 
agency

1. Distribution 
of school 
uniforms, 
Felicitation of 
10th & 12th Std 
students,

Promotion of 
education 

Khopoli (Maharashtra) 1 1 1 Direct 

2 Donation 
of garbage 
tipper for 
waste 
collection in 
the villages

Rural 
Development

Khopoli (Maharashtra) 6 6 6 Direct

3 Installation 
of ceiling fan 
in School, 
Playing 
equipment 

Promotion of 
education 

Taloja (Maharashtra) 2 2 2 Direct
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6.	 In case the Company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net profit of the last 3 financial years or any part 
thereof, reasons for not spending the amount -

	 During the year under review, the Company created a robust plan & monitoring mechanism to ensure that its CSR initiatives 
are sustainable and truly beneficial to the community in the long run. The Company initiated a number of CSR projects in 
its various plants, with some projects in the areas of healthcare, education and community/societal development, having 
duration of more than one year. For this reason, during the year, the Company’s spend on the CSR activities has been 
less than the prescribed limits. The Company regularly spends significant amounts of money on various activities aimed at 
serving the communities around the factories. Many of the operating sites of the Company are located in developing areas. 
The Company has helped the acquired units to upgrade their levels of safety, hygiene and environmental protection to the 
high standards. We also spend time, effort and resources in developing appropriate packaging solutions that ensure the 
safety of products that we pack and also being as environmentally friendly as is feasible in terms of current technologies 
permit. That our Company should be a socially responsible corporate citizen has been the approach followed by the 
Company for several years now. The Company will keep up this momentum, despite spends on such social responsibility 
activities not qualifying as CSR expenses under the Companies Act, 2013. 

	 Moving forward the Company endeavors to increase its CSR spend by scaling up its CSR activities, coupled with new 
initiatives/projects in the next financial year and is confident of achieving its CSR objectives in the forthcoming years.

	 The CSR Committee confirmed that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives 
and Policy of the Company.

 

By Order of the Board
For Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.

Suresh Gupta,
Chairman 

 (DIN No.:00235354)
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ANNEXURE – 6
Form No. MGT - 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31st December, 2016

(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules 2015)

I. 	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i. CIN: L21011MH1950FLC145537

ii. Registration Date [DDMMYY] 12/06/1950

iii. Name of Company Huhtamaki PPL Limited
(Formerly The Paper Products Limited)

iv. Category/ Sub Category of the Company Company Limited by shares

v. Address of Registered office and Contact details Unit No. 12A-06, B-Wing, 13th Floor,  
Parinee Crescenzo,  
Plot Nos. C-38 & C-39, “G” Block, Behind MCA, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),  
Mumbai – 400051
Contact : 022 - 6174 0400/ 26531310
Fax: 022 - 61740401/26531310
E-mail : rohan.naik@ppl.huhtamaki.com 
Website: www.ppl.huhtamaki.com

vi. Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s) 
If yes, details of stock exchanges where shares are 
listed

Yes
BSE Ltd./ National Stock Exchange of India Limited

vii. Name, Address & Contact details of Registrar & Transfer 
Agents (RTA):-

TSR Darashaw Ltd,
6-10, Haji Moosa Patrawala Industrial Estate,  
20 Dr. E Moses Road, Mahalaxmi,  
Mumbai-400011, Maharashtra
Tel: + 91 22 - 66568484 
Fax : + 91 22 - 66568494
Website: www.tsrdarashaw.com
Email : csg-unit@tsrdarashaw.com

II. 	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
	 (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the
Product/service

% to total turnover
of the company

1 Manufacture and Sale of Flexible Packaging Material 32909 100

III. 	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES [No. of Companies for which information 
is being filled]

Sr. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY / 
ASSOCIATE

1 Huhtavefa B.V. NA Holding 
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IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

	 i)	 Category-wise Share Holding - 

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 31-December-2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As on 
31-December-2016]

% Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

1. Indian

a.	 Individual/ HUF Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b. 	 Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c. 	 State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d. 	 Bodies Corp. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e. 	 Banks / FI Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f. 	 Any other 50,003,997 Nil 50,003,997 68.77 50,003,997 Nil 50,003,997 68.77 Nil

Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A)

50,003,997 Nil 50,003,997 68.77 50,003,997 Nil 50,003,997 68.77 Nil

B. Public Shareholding

1.	 Institutions

a.	 Mutual Funds 4,350,461 2,125 4,352,586 5.99 4,314,590 2,125 4,316,715 5.94 0.05

b.	 Banks / FI 12,422 5,330 17,752 0.02 5,475 5,330 10,805 0.01 0.01

c.	 Central Govt. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d.	 State Govt(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e.	 Venture Capital 
Funds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f.	 Insurance 
Companies

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

g.	 FIIs 3,60,974 6,250 367,224 0.51 606,497 6,250 612,747 0.84 0.33

h.	 Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i.  Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (B)(1):- 4,723,857 13,705 4,737,562 6.52 4,926,562 13,705 4,940,267 6.79 0.27

2. Non-Institutions

a.  Bodies Corporate

i.	 Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

ii. 	 Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b. 	 Individuals 13,225,094 1,002,368 14,227,462 19.57 13,750,486 989,248 14,739,734 20.27 0.30

i. 	 Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
upto ` 1 lakh

10,721,116 829,468 11,550,584 15.89 9,920,639 816,348 10,736,987 14.77 1.12

ii. 	 Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of

	 ` 1 lakh

2,503,978 172,900 2,676,878 3.68 3,829,847 172,900 4,002,747 5.50 1.82

c. Others 3,701,503 41,410 3,742,913 5.15 3,001,626 26,310 3,027,936 4.17 0.98

Non Resident 
Indians

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Overseas Corporate 
Bodies

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Foreign Nationals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil



67th Annual Report & Accounts 2016 23

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 31-December-2015]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As on 
31-December-2016]

% Change 
during 

the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Clearing Members Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Foreign Bodies 
- D R

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (B)(2):- 16,926,597 1,043,778 17,970,375 24.71 16,752,112 1,015,558 17,767,670 24.44 0.27

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

21,650,454 1,057,483 22,707,937 31.23 21,678,674 1,029,263 22,707,937 31.23 Nil

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

72,711,934 100 72,711,934 100 72,711,934 100 72,711,934 100 13.79

	 ii.	 Shareholding of Promoter-

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder’s 
Name

 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Share holding at the end of the year % change in share 
holding during the year 

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1. Huhtavefa B V 50,003,997 68.77 Nil 50,003,997 68.77 Nil  Nil

	 iii.	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) - 		  No Change

	 iv.	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 
ADRs):

Sr.
No.

Name of shareholders
 

 Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares  % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares  % of total 
shares of the 

company

1 HDFC Trustee Company Ltd        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 3,880,725 5.34 3,880,725 5.34

Bought during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Sold during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 3,880,725 5.34 3,880,725 5.34

2 Shree Capital Services Limited        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 948,947 1.31 948,947 1.31

Bought during the year 52,800 0.07 1,001,747 1.38

Sold during the year 52,800 0.07 948,947 1.31

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 948,947 1.31 948,947 1.31

3 Deepak Bhagnani        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 855,401 1.18 855,401 1.18

Bought during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Sold during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 855,401 1.18 855,401 1.18

4 Dolly Khanna        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 687,890 0.95 687,890 0.95

Bought during the year 10,925 0.02 698,815 0.96

Sold during the year 62,079 0.09 636,736 0.88

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 636,736 0.88 636,736 0.88

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)
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Sr.
No.

Name of shareholders
 

 Shareholding Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares  % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares  % of total 
shares of the 

company

5 Deepak Bhagnani        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 511,588 0.70 511,588 0.70

Bought during the year 2,3578 0.03 535,166 0.74

Sold during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 535,166 0.74 535,166 0.74

6 UTI – MNC Fund        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 355,571 0.49 355,571 0.49

Bought during the year 829 0.00 356,400 0.49

Sold during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 356,400 0.49 356,400 0.49

7 Punit Khanna        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 236,733 0.33 236,733 0.33

Bought during the year 6,041 0.01 242,774 0.33

Sold during the year 2,774 0.00 240,000 0.33

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 240,000 0.33 240,000 0.33

8 Tasha Enterprises LLP        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 237,923 0.33 237,923 0.33

Bought during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Sold during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 237,923 0.33 237,923 0.33

9 Anjul        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 2,015 0.00 2,015 0.00

Bought during the year 204,960 0.28 206,975 0.28

Sold during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 206,975 0.28 206,975 0.28

10 Sangeeta Nirmal Bang        

At the beginning of the year 01-01-2016 0 0.00 0 0.00

Bought during the year 200,000 0.28 200,000 0.28

Sold during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

At the end of the year 31-12-2016 200,000 0.28 200,000 0.28

	 v.	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. 
No.

Shareholding of each Directors and each Key 
Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

No. of shares % of total
shares of the

company

1 At the beginning of the year 5000 0.006 Nil Nil

2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share holding 
during the year specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc):

Nil Nil Nil Nil

3 At the end of the year 5000 0.006 Nil Nil

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)
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	 vi.	 INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 
payment

Particulars  Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year        

i) 	 Principal Amount  967,823,300 4,158,957,499 - 5,126,780,799

ii) 	 Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) 	 Interest accrued but not due 3,349,376 1,21,073,639 - 1,24,423,015

Total (i+ii+iii) 971,172,676 4,280,031,138 - 5,251,203,814

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year - -  

* Addition 915,530 117,712,096 - 118,627,626

* Reduction 618,802,131 271,147,296 - 889,949,427

Net Change (617,886,601) (153,435,200) - (771,321,801)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - - - -

i) 	 Principal Amount 352,145,556 4,008,883,842 4,361,029,398

ii) 	 Interest due but not paid - -

iii) 	 Interest accrued but not due 1,140,519 117,712,096 - 118,852,615

Total (i+ii+iii) 353,286,075 4,126,595,938 4,479,882,013

	 vii.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

		  A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. No.
 

Particulars of Remuneration
 

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 

Suresh Gupta
(Whole Time Director)

A Venkatrangan 
(Managing Director)

1 Gross salary 24,679,080 31,950,672 56,629,752

(a) 	 Salary as per provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the Income - tax 
Act, 1961

22,830,118 30,899,413 53,729,531

(b) 	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income - tax Act, 1961 (including 
accruals)

1,848,962 1,051,259 29,00,221

(c) 	 Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income - tax Act, 
1961

- - -

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others, specify..

- - -

5 Others, please specify (PF) 1,468,752 696,870 21,65,692

  Total (A) 26,147,832 32,647,542 58,795,374

  Ceiling as per the Act (being 10% of 
net profits of the Company calculated 
as per section 198 of the Companies 
Act, 2013)

72,167,200 72,167,200 144,334,400
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		  B.	  Remuneration to other directors : 

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total 
Amount

1 Independent Directors Arun Kumar 
Gandhi

Ramesh Dhir S.K. 
Palekar

 Nripjit Singh 
Chawla

Sukanya 
Kripalu 

Fee for attending Board/ 
Committee meetings 815,000 520,000 765,000 390,000 340,000 2,830,000

Commission 3,300,000 1,100,000 1,700,000 1,500,000 1,700,000 9,300,000

Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total (1) 4,115,000 1,620,000 2,465,000 1,890,000 2,040,000 12,130,000

2 Other Non-Executive Directors Jukka 
Moisio Olli Koponen -

-
- -

Fee for attending board committee 
meetings Nil Nil -

-
- -

Commission Nil Nil - - - -

Others, please specify Nil Nil - - - -

  Total (2) Nil Nil - - - -

  Total (B)=(1+2) 4,115,000 1,620,000 2,465,000 1,890,000 2,040,000 12,130,000

  Total Managerial Remuneration (Commission) 9,300,000

Ceiling as per the Act (Commission) 
(being 1% of net profits of the Company calculated as per section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013) 14,433,440

 
Overall Ceiling as per the Act  
(being 11% of net profits of the Company calculated as per section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013) 158,767,840

		  C.	 REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO CS CFO Total

1 Gross salary NA 3,609,128 9,944,896 13,554,024

(a) 	 Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961

NA 3,301,200 9,521,623 12,822,823

(b) 	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961

NA 307,928 423,273 731,201

(c)	 Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 
1961

NA - - -

2 Stock Option NA - - -

3 Sweat Equity NA - - -

4 Commission NA - - -

  - as % of profit NA - - -

   Others NA - - -

5 Others, please specify (PF) NA 181,440 272,680 454,120

  Total NA 3,790,568 10,217,576 14,008,144

	 viii.	 PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the 
Companies Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Punishment Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Compounding Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
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ANNEXURE – 7
DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY 

[Pursuant to Regulation 43(A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.]

1.	 SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THE POLICY

	 Pursuant to Regulation 43A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, top 500 listed 
companies, based on Market Capitalization of every financial year, are required to formulate a Dividend Distribution 
Policy. The Company being one of the top 500 listed companies frames this policy to comply with the aforesaid SEBI 
Regulations, 2015.

	 The Objective of this Policy is to ensure the right balance between the quantum of Dividend paid and amount of profits 
retained in the business for various purposes and provide guidance to the Board of Directors while recommending 
dividends to its shareholders, from time to time. 

2.	 FACTORS/PARAMETERS TO BE CONSIDERED WHILE DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND - 

	 The philosophy of the Company is to maximise the stakeholders’ wealth in the Company and the Board will consider the 
following factors while recommending dividend to its shareholders:

	 a)	 Internal Factors/ Financial Parameters:

	 	 •	 Consolidated Operating Profit after Tax;

	 	 •	 Free Cash Flows;

	 	 •	 Working Capital requirements;

	 	 •	 CAPEX Plans /requirements;

	 	 •	 Acquisitions and/or Diversification Plans;

	 	 •	 Cash Flow required for Contingencies;

	 	 •	 Borrowings; 

	 	 •	 Past Dividend Trends; and

	 	 •	 Assessment of Dividend Impact on Credit Rating & other consequential factors

	 b) 	 External Factors:

	 	 •	 Interest rates; 

	 	 •	 Taxation on distribution of dividend; and 

	 	 •	 Dividend Payout Ratios of comparable companies/ Companies in same industry. 

	 c) 	 Utilisation of Retained Earnings :

		  In unusual cases, the Company may consider declaring dividend out of profits of previous years or free reserves, after 
taking into account the parameters laid down in this policy. 

	 d) 	 Circumstances under which shareholder may or may not expect dividend : 

		  In an event where Company proposes/has undertaken a significant expansion project/CAPEX; Mergers, Acquisitions 
or Joint Ventures; buy-back of securities or any such eventualities which requires higher capital allocation or due to 
inadequate profits or incurring of losses.

	 e) 	 Provisions regarding various classes of shares -

		  Currently, the Company has issued only equity shares and this policy shall be applicable to dividend on equity shares. 
As and when the Company issues other classes of shares, the Board shall suitably amend this policy.

3.	 GENERAL -

	 a.	 This Policy is subject to any amendments/revisions as per the guidelines that may be issued by Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs and/or Securities Exchange Board of India, from time to time;

	 b.	 The Company reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend any of the provisions of this Policy, as it may 
deem fit; and 

	 c.	 In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc., issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent 
with the provisions laid down under this Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s), etc., shall prevail 
upon the provisions hereunder and this Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down 
under such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s), etc.

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contd.)
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COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON  
CODE OF GOVERNANCE
Huhtamaki PPL Limited (HPPL) believes that good Corporate 
Governance is essential to achieve long term corporate goals 
and enhance stakeholders’ value. Thus, HPPL’s philosophy on 
Corporate Governance is aimed at the attainment of highest level 
of transparency, accountability and compliance of laws in all facets 
of operations, leading to best standards of Corporate Governance.

It is HPPL’s belief that good ethics make good business sense and 
our business practices are in keeping with this spirit of maintaining 
the highest level of ethical standards. The implementation of HPPL’s 
Code for Prohibition of Insider Trading exemplifies this spirit of good 
ethics.

The Company complies with the requirements of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated under Regulation 34 read along with 
Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st December, 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred as the Board) comprises of a combination of Executive and 
Non-Executive Directors. The Board of Directors, as on 31st December, 2016 comprised 9 (Nine) Directors of whom 2 (Two) 
are Executive and 7 (Seven) are Non-Executive Directors, 5 (Five) of which are Independent Directors. The Chairman of the 
Board is an Executive Director and more than half of the Board members are Independent. The composition of the Board is 
in line with requirement of Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations). The Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, Promoters or Management, which may affect their judgement in any manner. 
The Directors are eminently qualified and experienced professionals in business, finance and corporate management.

The policy formulation, evaluation of performance and the control function vest with the Board, while the Board Committees 
oversee operational issues. The Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider amongst other business, the quarterly 
performance of the Company and financial results. Directors attending the meetings actively participate in the deliberations at 
these meetings.

The composition of the Board and attendance at Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting (AGM) held during the 
year under review is given below:

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director Category No. of Board 
Meetings held during 
the FY 2016/Tenure

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance at 
last AGM

1 Mr. Suresh Gupta, Chairman Executive 9 9 Yes

2 Mr. A Venkatrangan,  
Managing Director

Executive 9 9 Yes

3 Mr. Jukka Moisio Non-Executive 9 1 No

4 Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi* Non-Executive, 
Independent

9 8 Yes

5 Mr. Ramesh K. Dhir^ Non-Executive, 
Independent

9 9 Yes

6 Mr. S K Palekar* Non-Executive, 
Independent

9 9 Yes

7 Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla* Non-Executive, 
Independent

9 8 Yes

8 Ms. Sukanya Kripalu $ Non-Executive, 
Independent

9 8 Yes

9 Mr. Olli Koponen Non- Executive 9 8 Yes

At the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 30th March, 2017, the following Directors were re-appointed as 
Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company –

•	 *Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi, Mr. S K Palekar and Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla for a period of three years w.e.f. 31st March, 2017;

•	 $ Ms. Sukanya Kripalu for a period of three years w.e.f. 7th May, 2017; and

•	 ^Mr. Ramesh K. Dhir for a period of one year w.e.f. 31st March, 2017;
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During the year 2016, Nine Board Meetings were held on 16th February, 2016, 17th February, 2016, 22nd March, 2016, 10th May, 
2016, 21st June, 2016, 9th August, 2016, 22nd September, 2016, 9th November, 2016 and 8th December, 2016 with time gap not 
exceeding 4 months between two such meetings. The Annual General Meeting was held on 10th May, 2016.

Directorships and Committee Memberships / Chairmanships in other public limited companies are given below:

Name of the Director

As on 31st December, 2016

Other 
Directorship(s)1

Committee positions in other Companies (excluding HPPL)2

Member Chairman Total

Mr. Suresh Gupta 2 Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Jukka Moisio Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi 3 1 1 2

Mr. Ramesh K. Dhir Nil Nil Nil Nil

Mr. S K Palekar 2 Nil 1 1

Mr. A Venkatrangan 2 1 Nil 1

Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla Nil Nil Nil Nil

Ms. Sukanya Kripalu 4 3 Nil 3

Mr. Olli Koponen Nil Nil Nil Nil

1The number of Directorships excludes Directorships of private limited companies, foreign companies and companies licensed 
under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013

2Committee includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of public limited companies (excluding 
foreign companies and Section 8 companies) in terms of Regulation 26 of the Listing Regulations.

Information provided to the Board:

The annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is agreed upon at the beginning of the year. The agenda is 
circulated well in advance to the Board members, along with comprehensive background information on the items in the 
agenda to enable the Board to deliberate on relevant points and arrive at an informed decision. All relevant information related 
to the working of the Company, including the information required under Part A Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 is 
made available to the Board. In addition to matters, which require to be placed before the Board for its noting and / or approval, 
information is also provided on various other significant matters.

Review of legal compliance reports:

During the year, the Board periodically reviewed reports placed by the management with respect to compliance of various laws 
applicable to the Company. The Internal Auditors also review compliance status and report to the Audit Committee.

Relationship between Directors inter-se:

There are no inter-se relationships amongst the Directors.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Board has constituted various Committees, viz., Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Share Transfer Committee.

a.	 Audit Committee:

	 i.	 The Audit Committee comprises of Two Non-Executive Independent Directors and One Executive Director, all of 
whom are financially literate and one of them possesses accounting and/or financial management expertise.
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		  During the Year 2016, Six Audit Committee meetings were held on 16th February 2016, 22nd March, 2016, 10th May, 
2016, 9th August, 2016, 9th November, 2016 and 8th December, 2016. The time gap between two consecutive meetings 
of the Audit Committee was not more than four months.

		  The composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of Directors at its meetings are given hereunder:

Name of the Director Qualifications Meetings attended / 
held during FY 2016

Mr. S K Palekar – Chairman M.Sc. (Physics) and M.M.S (Marketing) 6/6

Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi FCA (India) and FCA (England & Wales) 5/6

Mr. Suresh Gupta Masters in Mgt. Studies (MMS) 6/6

	 ii.	 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of Listing 
Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the 
following:

	 	 •	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company.

	 	 •	 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

	 	 •	 Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

			   a.	 matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s 
Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

			   b.	 changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
			   c.	 major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
			   d.	 significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
			   e.	 compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
			   f.	 disclosure of any related party transactions;
			   g.	 modified opinion(s) in the draft Audit Report;

	 	 •	 Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval;

	 	 •	 Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 
utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take 
up steps in this matter;

	 	 •	 Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

	 	 •	 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;

	 	 •	 Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

	 	 •	 Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

	 	 •	 Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

	 	 •	 Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal

	 	 •	 Auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

	 	 •	 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, 
staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of 
internal audit;

	 	 •	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;

	 	 •	 Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

	 	 •	 To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

	 	 •	 Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, 
etc. of the candidate;
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	 	 •	 Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee.

			   The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held in 2016 
for addressing the shareholders queries. The MD, CFO, the Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors are 
invited by the Committee to attend the Audit Committee meetings. Operating managers are also invited to attend 
the meetings, as and when required. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are placed before the Board. 
The Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

			   M/s. S R B C & CO LLP, Chartered Accountants, are the Company’s Statutory Auditors. They are responsible 
for performing an independent audit of the financial statements and expressing an opinion on the conformity of 
those financial statements with accounting principles generally accepted in India.

b.	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee :

	 The Committee comprises of two Non–Executive Directors. During the Year 2016, four Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee meetings were held on 16th February, 2016, 10th May, 2016, 9th August, 2016 and 9th November, 2016.

	 The current composition of the Committee is given hereunder:

Name of the Director Meetings attended / held during FY 2016

Mr. Ramesh K. Dhir - Chairman 4/4

Mr. S K Palekar - Member 4/4

	 The Company has attended to all the Investor’s grievances/queries/information/ requests, except for the cases where the 
Company was constrained due to pending legal proceedings or Court/statutory orders. The Company endeavors to reply 
to all letters/complaints received from shareholders within a week of receipt of the same.

	 There were two investor complaints pending at the beginning and at the end of the year. The status of complaints, if any, 
is also reported to the Board. The Compliance Officer and his team along with the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of 
the Company address general queries of the shareholders to their satisfaction. Mr. D V Iyer, Company Secretary is the 
Compliance Officer of the Company.

	 Details of Investor complaints received during 2016:

Nature of Complaint Opening Received Replied / 
Resolved

Pending

Non-receipt of Dividend 0 0 0 0

Non-receipt of Share Certificate after transfer / Exchange / 
sub-divided / consolidated / Annual Report

0 0 0 0

Others * 2 0 0 2*

Total 0 0 0 2*

	  *The two Complaints are under adjudication with Securities and Exchange Board of India.

c. 	 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee :

	 The Committee comprises of 3 members. The Chairman of the Committee is the Executive Director of the Company.

Name Meetings attended / held during FY 2016

Mr. Suresh Gupta - Chairman 2/2

Mr. S K Palekar - Member 2/2

Mr. A Venkatrangan - Member 2/2

	 The Meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held on 9th August, 2016 and 9th November, 2016.

	 The Committee is primarily responsible for formulating and recommending to the Board of Directors a Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Policy and monitoring the same from time to time, amount of expenditure to be incurred on the 
activities pertaining to CSR. The Company has adopted CSR policy and the same is posted on website of the Company 
http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf.
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d. 	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee :

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three Independent Directors. The composition of the 
Committee and their attendance at the meeting(s) for the Financial year 2016 is given hereunder:

Name of the Director Meetings attended / held during FY 2016

Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi, Chairman 5/6

Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla, Member 5/6

Mr. Ramesh K. Dhir, Member 6/6

	 During the year six meetings of Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on 16th February, 2016, 22nd March, 
2016, 21st June, 2016, 9th August, 2016, 2nd September, 2016 and 9th November, 2016.

	 The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in line with Regulation 19 read with Part D of 
Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 :

	 1.	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other 
employees;

	 2.	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;

	 3.	 Devising a policy on Board Diversity;

	 4.	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

	 5.	 Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report of 
performance evaluation of independent directors.

Performance Evaluation of Board, Committees and Individual Directors

The Board has adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating the performance of its Board, Committees & individual Directors, 
including the Chairman of the Board. Further, a structured performance evaluation exercise was carried out based on criteria 
such as Board/ Committee Compositions, Structure & responsibilities thereof, effectiveness of Board process, participation 
and contribution by member, information & functioning; Board/ Committee culture & dynamics, degree of fulfillment of key 
responsibilities, etc.

The performance of Board, Committee thereof, Chairman, Executive & Non- Executive Directors and individual Director is 
evaluated by the Board/ Separate meeting of Independent Directors. The results of such evaluation are presented to the NRC 
and Board of Directors.

Remuneration to Executive Directors

The remuneration paid to Mr. Suresh Gupta, Chairman and Mr. A Venkatrangan, Managing Director for the year 2016 is as 
under:

		   (Amt. in `)

Name of the Directors Salary HRA Perquisites Commission Total

Mr. Suresh Gupta 17,477,914 5,352,204 3,317,714 - 26,147,832

Mr. A Venkatrangan 25,403,958 2,903,625 4,339,959 - 32,647,542

Notes:

1.	 Perquisites include Company’s contribution to provident fund, medical and leave travel allowance, etc., as well as monetary 
value of perquisites as per Income Tax Rules and also provision of `2,591,830/- made under “Phantom Stock Scheme” for 
Mr. A Venkatrangan, Managing Director.

2.	 Salary includes incentive of ` 4,204,603/- paid to Mr. Suresh Gupta and ` 7,987,508/- to Mr. A Venkatrangan as 
Management Incentive & Special Incentive, based on the Company Performance and achievement of specific targets, 
respectively.
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3.	 The above does not include gratuity and leave encashment benefits as the provisions for these are determined for the 
Company as a whole and therefore separate amounts for the Directors are not available.

4.	 The Managing Director of the Company is entitled to shares under the “Share Ownership Plan” of Huhtamaki Oyj (the 
ultimate Holding company) which entitles him to receive shares at nil cost. The scheme detailed above are assessed, 
managed and administered by the ultimate holding company and there is no cost of the shares charged to the Company. 
The charge taken by Huhtamaki Oyj in its accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2016 for these shares is 
` 6,989,079/- (previous year ` 4,218,352/-).

5.	 The above remuneration of Mr. Suresh Gupta, Chairman of the Company does not include ` 13,886,499/- paid by 
Huhtamaki Finance BV, in his role as Senior Advisor for the Huhtamaki Group.

6.	 Details of service contracts, notice period and severance fees of the Executive Directors:

Name of Director Mr. Suresh Gupta Mr. A Venkatrangan

Date of contract 6th July, 1999 (renewed and modified on 22nd 
June 2001, 24th June 2004, 27th April 2007, 
3rd March 2010 & 4th May, 2012 and 13th 
November,2013) and 7th August, 2014, 9th 
November, 2016*

27th July, 2012, 7th May, 2013 7th October, 
2014, 10th June, 2015

Term of Contract Two Years w.e.f. 1st January, 2017 Three Years w.e.f .7th October, 2014

Notice Period 90 days 90 days

Severance fees i.	 Salary and other emoluments for a peri-
od of 90 days in lieu of notice; and

ii.	 Base salary for a period equal to one 
month’s base salary for every year of 
completed service.

Salary and other emoluments for a period of 
90 days in lieu of notice.

Remuneration to Non Executive Directors

Non–Executive Independent Directors are paid sitting fees for attending Board / Committee Meetings as approved by the 
Board within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of Sitting Fees paid to the Non-Executive Independent Directors during the year 2016 are as follows:

 (Amount in `)

Names of the Directors Board Meetings Committee Meetings Total

Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi 315,000 340,000 655,000

Mr. Ramesh K. Dhir 315,000 205,000 520,000

Mr. S K Palekar 315,000 280,000 595,000

Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla 280,000 110,000 390,000

Ms. Sukanya Kripalu 280,000 10,000 290,000

Total 1,505,000 945,000 2,450,000

Details of Sitting Fees paid to the Non-Executive Independent Directors of Positive Packaging Industries Limited (erstwhile 
subsidiary of the Company) since merged with the Company, during the year FY 2016 :

 (Amount in `)

Names of the Directors Board Meetings Committee Meetings Total

Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi 70,000 90,000 160,000

Mr. S K Palekar 70,000 100,000 170,000

Ms. Sukanya Kripalu 50,000 - 50,000

Total 190,000 190,000 380,000
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The Commission paid to the Non–Executive Independent Directors of the Company for the year 2016 is as follows:

Names of the Director  Amount in `

Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi 3,300,000*

Mr. S K Palekar 1,700,000*

Mr. Ramesh K. Dhir 1,100,000

Mr. Nripjit Singh Chawla 1,500,000

Ms. Sukanya Kripalu 1,700,000*

Total 9,300,000*

*The amount includes the Commission paid by erstwhile Positive Packaging Industries Limited (since merged with the 
Company) to Mr. Arunkumar Gandhi, Mr. S.K. Palekar, Ms. Sukanya Kripalu, who were Independent Directors on erstwhile 
Board of Positive Packaging Industries Limited.

Commission payable to each of the Independent Directors as authorized by the Members at the 62nd Annual General Meeting 
held on 4th May, 2012, is determined and approved by the Board based on the number of meeting attended their roles and 
responsibilities as Chairman/Member of the Board Committee and contribution thereof. The total amount of commission to 
Non-Executive Independent Directors is within the limit of 1% of the net profits of the company for the year, calculated as per 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any stock options to its Non-Executive Directors. None of the Non-Executive Directors are 
holding any shares in the Company.

d. 	 Share Transfer Committee

	 The Board of Directors has delegated the powers to approve the transfer of shares to a Share Transfer Committee. The 
Committee comprises of Mr. Suresh Gupta, Chairman and Mr. A Venkatrangan, Managing Director.

	 The meetings of the Share Transfer Committee were held on 4th January, 2016, 8th February, 2016, 16th February, 2016, 
30th May, 2016, 10th October, 2016 and 28th November, 2016.

	 The report of the Practising Company Secretary on the Reconciliation of Share Capital of the Company as required by 
SEBI is obtained every quarter and furnished to the Stock Exchanges. The Report is also placed before the Board and 
noted by them as required under the applicable law.

	 Share Transfer System

	 Documents for transfer of shares in physical form can be lodged with TSR Darashaw Limited the R&T Agents of the Company 
w.e.f 1st June, 2016. The Share Transfer Committee attends to share transfer formalities at least once in fortnight.

e. 	 Independent Directors

	 Meeting of Independent Directors

	 One meeting of Independent Directors as required under Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations was held on 
22nd September, 2016 at the Registered Office of the Company which was attended by all the Independent Directors of 
the Company.

Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors

Your Company has put in place a Familiarisation Programme for Independent Directors to familiarize them with the nature 
of the Flexible Packaging Industry, Company’s strategy, business plan, operations, markets, products, etc., and also update 
them on their roles, rights, responsibilities & duties. Apart from making presentations to the Board, Audit & various Committees, 
wherein Business Heads directly interact with Board members, the Company also arranges for Plant visit of Independent 
Directors, to familiarise them with manufacturing processes carried out by the Company.

The details of the Company’s Familiarisation Programme is available on the Company’s website - web link: http://www.
huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf.

MANAGEMENT

Disclosures by Management

The particulars of transactions between the Company and its related parties as per the Accounting Standard are set out in Note 
39 forming part of the accounts. These transactions are not likely to have any conflict with the Company’s interest.
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All details relating to financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have a potential interest are provided to the 
Board, and interested Directors neither participate in the discussion, nor do they vote on such matters.

CEO / CFO Certification

Mr. A Venkatrangan, Managing Director & Mr. Parag Vyavahare, Chief Financial Officer, have issued necessary certification 
to the Board in terms of Schedule II Part B of the Listing Regulations and the same was taken on record by the Board at its 
meeting held on 20th April, 2017. A copy of this certificate is provided as Annexure A to this report.

Code of Conduct

As required under, Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for Directors 
and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The same has been posted on the Company’s website http://www.
huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies. The Company has received affirmation of compliance from Directors & 
Senior Managerial Personnel of the Company for the financial year ended 31st December, 2016. A declaration to this effect 
signed by the Managing Director of the Company is provided as Annexure B to this report.

DISCLOSURES

Disclosures regarding Appointment or Re-appointment of Directors

A.	 Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, at every Annual General Meeting of the Company, one-third of the 
directors, whose office is subject to retirement, are liable to retire.

	 Mr. Olli Koponen being longest in office shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible 
has offered himself for re-appointment.

B.	 The brief resume of the above-mentioned Director is as under:

	 Mr. Olli Koponen holds a Masters Degree in Engineering Automation and Information Technology. He has worked 
previously with Systecon Oy before joining Huhtamaki Oyj in the year 1990 and presently holds the position of Executive 
Vice President, Flexible Packaging. Based on the nomination received from Huhtavefa B V, he was appointed as an 
Additional Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 17th December, 2015 and was re-appointed as Director in Annual 
General Meeting of the Company held on 10th May, 2016.

Means of Communication

The Company has always promptly reported to all the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed, all 
material information including declaration of quarterly / half-yearly and annual financial results in the prescribed formats and 
through press releases etc.

The financial results and other statutory information are communicated to the shareholders by way of advertisement in 
“Business Standard”, English newspaper having nationwide circulation and “Sakal” Marathi newspaper (local language), as 
per the requirements of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges.

The said results are also made available on the Company’s website: http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/
investors. The Official press releases, Company information, Annual Reports and the extracts of media coverage are also 
displayed on the Company’s website.

As the financial results are published in leading newspapers as well as hosted on the Company’s website, the results are not 
sent to the households of the individual shareholders.

Disclosures of materially significant related party transactions

Transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Accounting Standard 18 are disclosed in notes to accounts annexed 
to the financial statement of Annual Report of the Company for the year 2016. The Company has adopted policy on Related 
Party Transactions. The same is posted on website of the Company at http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-
india/policies.

Insider Trading Regulations

The Company has notified and adopted the HPPL Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading and Fair Disclosure of 
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information pursuant to SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The Compliance 
Officer is responsible for the purpose of these Regulations. The said HPPL Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading 
and Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information is published on the website of the Company http://www.
huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.

Details of capital market related non-compliance, if any

There has been no non-compliance by the Company of any legal requirements during the last three years; nor has there been 
any penalty, stricture imposed on the Company by any stock exchange, SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related 
to capital markets pertaining to this period.
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Risk Management

The Company has in place mechanism to inform Board Members about the Risk Assessment and Minimization procedures 
and periodical reviews to ensure that risk is controlled by the Executive Management.

Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism

The Company has adopted the Whistle Blower Policy for Prevention, Detection and Investigation of Frauds and Protection of 
Whistleblowers. The same has been posted on the Company’s website http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-
india/policies. The Whistle Blower Policy broadly covers a detailed process for reporting, handling and investigation of 
fraudulent activities and providing necessary protection to the employees who report such fraudulent activities/ unethical 
behavior. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee to seek redressal of his/her grievances.

Material Subsidiary Policy

The Company has adopted Policy for determination of Material Subsidiary and the same has been posted on the Company’s 
website http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.

Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has adopted Dividend Distribution Policy for dividend distribution and same has been posted on the Company’s 
website http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.

Adoption/Non-adoption of Non-Mandatory Requirements of Regulation 27 read with Part E of Schedule II of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

•	 The Company have a Executive Chairman;

•	 The Company does not send Half-yearly financial performance to each household of shareholders, as it is displayed on 
Company’s website;

•	 The Audit qualifications if any are displayed in the financial reports of the Company. There are no audit qualifications for 
the year under review;

•	 The Company has appointed M/s Aneja & Associates, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors. The Internal 
Audit Report is presented to the Audit Committee and representative of Internal Auditor replies the questions of Audit 
Committee members;

•	 The Company has separated post of Managing Director and Chairman

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS –

A.	 The details of last three Annual General Meetings held are as under:

Year Date Time Location Special Resolutions passed

2013 07.05.2014 4.00 p.m. Manik Sabhagriha, Vishwakarma, 
M.D. Lotlikar Vidya Sankul, 
Opp Lilavati Hospital, Bandra 
Reclamation, Mumbai – 400050

For change of name of Company 
from “The Paper Products Limited” to 
“Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.”

2014 07.05.2015 4.00 p.m. Rama Watumull Auditorium,
Kishinchand Chellaram College,
Dinshaw Wacha Road,
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020

Nil

2015 10.05.2016 4.00 p.m. Rama Watumull Auditorium,
Kishinchand Chellaram College,
Dinshaw Wacha Road,
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020

•	 Approval of ‘Huhtamaki PPL Limited 
Employee Phantom Stock Scheme 
2015’. 

•	 Approval of variation in remuneration 
of Mr. A Venkatrangan, Managing 
Director.

•	 Approval for shifting of place of 
keeping of Register of Members, 
Index of Members and certain other 
registers and documents.
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B.	 EGM / COURT CONVENED MEETING: The details of Court Convened Meetings of the Company are as follows :

Year Date Time Location Special Resolutions passed

2016 21.06.2016 2.30 p.m. Manik Sabhagriha, Vishwakarma, 
M.D. Lotlikar Vidya Sankul, 
Opp Lilavati Hospital, Bandra 
Reclamation, Mumbai - 400 050

•	 Approval of the Scheme 
of Arrangement between 
the Company and Positive 
Packaging Industries Limited;

•	 Approval of Reduction of Share 
Capital, pursuant to the said 
Scheme of Arrangement.

2016 21.06.2016 4.00 p.m. Manik Sabhagriha, Vishwakarma, 
M.D. Lotlikar Vidya Sankul, 
Opp Lilavati Hospital, Bandra 
Reclamation, Mumbai - 400 050

•	 Approval of the Scheme of 
Arrangement between the 
Company and Webtech Labels 
Pvt Ltd.;

•	 Approval of Reduction of 
Securities Premium Account, 
pursuant to the said Scheme of 
Arrangement.

C.	 POSTAL BALLOT: The Company has not conducted any Postal Ballot for passing of any Special Resolution during the 
last three years.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Details of ensuing Annual General Meeting

Day & Date Time Venue

12th June, 2017 4.00 p.m. Rama Watumull Auditorium, Kishinchand Chellaram College, Dinshaw Wacha 
Road, Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020

Financial Calendar:

Financial Year: Calendar Year (1st January to 31st December)

Schedule of the Board Meetings for declaration of Financial Results (tentative and subject to change):

Quarter ended/ending Date of Board Meetings

March, 2017 12th May, 2017 (Friday)

June, 2017 11th August, 2017 (Friday)

September, 2017 7th November, 2017 (Tuesday)

December, 2017 Second week of February, 2018

Book Closure Date

Pursuant to Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members will remain closed from Friday, 2nd June, 2017 
to Monday, 12th June, 2017 (both days inclusive).

Dividend Payment Date

Dividend at the rate of ̀  3/- per share has been recommended by the Board and is subject to the approval from the shareholders 
at the ensuing AGM, the same will be paid on or before 18th June, 2017:

a. 	 to all those beneficial owners holding shares in electronic form, as per the ownership data made available to the company 
by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) as of the 
end-of-the-day on 1st June, 2017; and

b. 	 to all those shareholders holding shares in physical form, after giving effect to all the valid share transfers lodged with the 
company on or before the closing hours on 1st June, 2017.
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Dividend History of the Company

Year AGM Date Dividend Rate ` (%)

2013 07.05.2014  ` 2.80 (140%)

2014 07.05.2015 ` 2.80 (140%)

2015 10.05.2016 ` 2.80 (140%)

Listing of Shares on Stock Exchanges

The Company’s shares are listed on BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and Non-
Convertible Debentures (NCD) on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The details of the same are as follows:

Stock Exchange Type of Security Stock Code/Symbol

BSE Limited (BSE) Equity 509820

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Equity PAPERPROD

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) Debentures HPPL20

The ISIN of Company’s equity shares is INE275B01026 and the ISIN of Company’s NCD’s is INE275B08013.

Annual Listing fees for 12 months ended 31st March, 2017 have been paid to BSE and NSE.

Company Identification Number (CIN)

All the forms, returns, balance sheets, charges, if any and all other documents, papers etc. filed by the Company with the 
Registrar of Companies are available for inspection on the official website of MCA www.mca.gov.in, under the Company 
Identification Number (CIN): L21011MH1950FLC145537.

AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As required under Schedule V Part E of the Listing Regulations the Auditor’s Certificate regarding the compliance of provisions 
of the Corporate Governance norms is attached with this report.

STOCK DATA

The table herein below gives the monthly high and low prices and volume of the Company’s shares traded at the BSE and NSE 
during the period January 2016 to December 2016:

Month & Year
BSE NSE

High (`/share) Low (`/share)
Volume (No. 
of Shares)

High (`/share) Low (`/share)
Volume (No. 
of Shares)

Jan-16 249.00 206.30 63,098 253.20 205.20 4,09,990

Feb-16 224.20 176.90 54,594 224.95 176.00 2,62,790

Mar-16 229.90 200.00 79,836 230.95 199.80 1,97,086

Apr-16 236.00 210.60 70,979 236.50 208.65 4,80,110

May-16 315.10 216.00 4,30,607 310.00 216.00 19,40,038

Jun-16 300.20 255.00 2,48,108 301.90 249.00 8,99,456

Jul-16 326.50 290.00 1,77,637 326.45 290.10 5,82,302

Aug-16 327.00 275.00 1,08,043 323.65 275.00 5,30,491

Sep-16 284.00 255.10 65,334 288.50 253.00 3,29,576

Oct-16 295.80 255.00 1,24,414 294.00 255.05 8,62,450

Nov-16 296.00 228.35 61,360 292.95 226.35 3,11,783

Dec-16 263.90 230.00 39,775 264.20 231.60 1,55,823

Note:

1. 	 Volume is the total monthly volume of trade (in numbers) in shares of the Company on respective exchanges.
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	 The chart herein below shows the comparison of the Company’s share price movement vis-à-vis the movement of BSE 
Sensex:

Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr -16 May-16 Jun -16 Jul -16 Aug -16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16

PPL HIGH 249.00 224.20 229.90 236.00 315.10 300.20 326.50 327.00 284.00 295.80 296.00 263.90 

BSE HIGH 26,197.2 25,002.3 25,479.6 26,100.5 26,837.2 27,105.4 28,240.2 28,532.2 29,077.2 28,477.6 28,029.8 26,803.7

25,000

26,000

27,000

28,000

29,000

30,000

31,000

32,000

33,000

34,000

35,000

36,000

37,000

38,000

39,000

40,000

152.00

167.00

182.00

197.00

212.00

227.00

242.00

257.00

272.00

287.00

302.00

317.00

332.00

347.00

B
S

E
 S

E
N

S
E

X

P
P

L 
S

H
A

R
E

 P
R

IC
E

 (
`)

COMPANY SHARE PRICE AND BSE SENSEX - HIGH 

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Following is the distribution pattern of shareholding of the Company as on 31st December, 2016:

Distribution of shareholding by ownership:

Sr. No. Category No. of Shareholders No. of Shares % of Total Holding

1. Indian Promoters 0 0 0.00

2. Foreign Promoters – Huhtavefa B.V. 1 50,003,997 68.77

3. Foreign Institutional Investors 27 612,747 0.84

4. NRI’s & OCB’s 325 584,102 0.80

5. Bodies Corporate / BC-NBFC 430 3,027,810 4.16

6. Banks/ Financial Institutions 4 10,805 0.01

7. Insurance Companies 0 0 0.00

8. Mutual Funds 7 4,316,715 5.94

9. Resident Individuals 14,487 14,155,632 19.47

10 Trust 1 126 0.00

Total 15,282 72,711,934 100.00
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Distribution of shareholding by number of shares held:

No. of Equity Shares Held No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders No. of Shares Held % of Shares

Up to – 500 11,740 76.82 1,642,695 2.26

501 – 1000 1,501 9.82 1,224,996 1.68

1001 – 2000 885 5.79 1,337,959 1.84

2001 – 3000 365 2.39 922,305 1.27

3001 – 4000 171 1.12 610,508 0.84

4001 – 5000 144 0.94 675,872 0.93

5001 - 10000 251 1.64 1,893,435 2.60

10001 and above 225 1.47 64,404,164 88.57

Total 15,282 100.00 72,711,934 100.00

List of Top Ten Shareholders (other than Promoters) of the Company as on 31st December, 2016:

Sr. No. Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Held % of Total Shareholding

1  HDFC Trustee Company Ltd 3,880,725 5.34

2  Shree Capital Services Limited 948,947 1.31

3  Deepak Bhagnani 855,401 1.18

4  Dolly Khanna 636,736 0.88

5  Deepak Bhagnani 535,166 0.74

6  UTI-MNC Fund 356,400 0.49

7  Punit Khanna 240,000 0.33

8  Tasha Enterprises, LLP 237,923 0.33

9  Anjul 206,975 0.28

10  Sangeeta Nirmal Bang 200,000 0.28

Total 8,098,273 11.16

PLEDGE OF SHARES

No pledge has been created over the Equity Shares held by the Promoters and/or Promoter Group Shareholders as on 31st 
December, 2016.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

As on 31st December, 2016, 98.58% of the Company’s shares including all the shares held by the Promoters and/or Promoter 
Group Shareholders were held in electronic form and the Company’s shares can only be traded in compulsory demat segment 
in the stock exchanges where it is listed.

The table herein below gives the break up of shares in physical and demat form as at 31st December, 2016:

Mode of Holding Number of Shareholders Number of shares Percentage

Physical 1,363 1,029,263 1.42

Dematerialised 13,919 71,682,671 98.58

Total 15,282 72,711,934 100.00

OUTSTANDING GDRS/WARRANTS/CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS AND THEIR IMPACT ON EQUITY

The Company has not issued any ADR, GDR or Warrants and there are no Convertible instruments outstanding and hence 
there is no likely impact on equity.

DETAILS OF PUBLIC FUNDING OBTAINED IN THE LAST THREE YEARS

The Company has not obtained any public funding in the last three years.
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ELECTRONIC CLEARANCE SCHEME (ECS) FOR DIVIDEND

To avoid risk of loss / interception of dividend warrants in postal transit and / or fraudulent encashment, shareholders are 
requested to avail of the ECS facility where dividends are directly credited in electronic form to their respective bank accounts, 
which also ensures faster credit of dividend. Shareholders who desire receipt of their dividend through ECS can obtain the form 
from the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Company.

Shareholders may also submit their bank details to Registrar and Transfer Agent. This will enable the Company to incorporate 
this information on dividend warrants to minimize the risk of fraudulent encashment.

TRANSFER OF ‘UNDERLYING SHARES’ INTO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) (IN CASES 
WHERE UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS HAVE BEEN TRANSFERRED TO IEPF FOR A CONSECUTIVE PERIOD OF SEVEN 
YEARS) 

In terms of Section 125(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company is required to transfer the shares in respect of which 
dividends have remained unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years to the IEPF Account established by the Central 
Government. As required under the said Rules, the Company has published a Notice in the newspapers inviting the Members 
attention to the aforesaid Rules. The Company has also sent out individual communication to the concerned Members whose 
shares are liable to be transferred to IEPF Account, pursuant to the said Rules to take immediate action in the matter. 

DEALING WITH SECURITIES WHICH HAVE REMAINED UNCLAIMED 

Regulation 39(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with Schedule VI “Manner 
of dealing with Unclaimed Shares”, which came into effect from December 1, 2015, has directed Companies to dematerialize 
such shares which have been returned as “Undelivered” by the postal authorities and hold these shares in an “Unclaimed 
Suspense Account” to be opened with either one of the Depositories viz. NSDL or CDSL. All corporate benefits on such shares 
viz. bonus shares, dividends etc. shall be credited to the unclaimed suspense account as applicable for a period of seven 
years and will thereafter be transferred in accordance with the provisions of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer, and Refund) Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules) read with Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Members are requested to note the same and take action for claiming the shares.

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE WITH THE COMPANY

All correspondence may please be addressed to the Registrar and Transfer Agent, TSR Darashaw Limited at the address 
given below.

In case any shareholder is not satisfied with the response or do not get any response within reasonable period from the 
Registrar and Transfer Agent, they may approach the Compliance Officer at the Registered Office of the Company or email 
their queries/ grievances to investor.communication@ppl.huhtamaki.com.

Registered Office: Registrar and Transfer Agent (RTA)
(For Shares and Non-Convertible Debentures)

Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.
Unit No.12A-06, B-Wing, 13th Floor
Parinee Crescenzo, Plot No. C-38 & C-39,
G Block, Behind MCA, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400051
Tel: +91 22 6174 0400, Fax: +91 22 6174 0401,
Website: www.huhtamaki.com
Email: investor.communication@ppl.huhtamaki.com

TSR Darashaw Ltd,
6-10, Haji Moosa Patrawala Ind. Estate,  
20 Dr. E Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, 
Mumbai - 400011
Tel: + 91 22 - 66568484
Fax : + 91 22 - 66568494
Website: www.tsrdarashaw.com,
Email : csg-unit@tsrdarashaw.com

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. D V Iyer, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

LOCATIONS
Registered & Corporate Office:		 Unit No.12A-06, B-Wing 13th Floor,
 								        Parinee Crescenzo, Plot No. C-38 & C-39, G Block,
 								        Behind MCA, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra
 								        (East) Mumbai - 400051

Central Headquarters:				   L.B.S. Marg, Majiwade, Thane (Maharashtra) – 400601

Plants:							       The location/details of the Company’s Plants are given in the Corporate Information 	
								        section of the Annual Report and are also available on the Company’s website.
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Annexure A

CEO/CFO Certification (As per Regulation 17 Part B of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

									          20th April, 2017
To
The Board of Directors
Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.

We hereby certify that in the preparation of the accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016,

a. 	 We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and 
belief:

	 i.	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

	 ii.	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b. 	 To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Company has not entered into any transactions during the year, which are 
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct;

c.	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and we have 
disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, 
of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies;

d.	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee -

	 i.	 That there are no significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting during the year;

	 ii.	 That there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year;. and

	 iii.	 There have been no instances of material fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any 
of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 
reporting.

		

	 Parag Vyavahare							       A Venkatrangan
	 Chief Financial Officer			    			   Managing Director
 											           (DIN: 05294659)

Annexure B

Certificate of Compliance with the Code of Conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel

The Members of
Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.

DECLARATION

As required under Regulation 17 read with Schedule V (D) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation 
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges, I hereby declare that all the Board members and 
senior management personnel of the Company have complied with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2016.

						      For Huhtamaki PPL Ltd.

								         A Venkatrangan
Mumbai	  	  	  Managing Director
20th April, 2017	  (DIN: 05294659)
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE

To

The Members of Huhtamaki PPL Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Huhtamaki PPL Limited, for the year ended on 
31st December 2016, as stipulated in Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited 
to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the provisions as 
specified in chapter IV Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 pursuant to Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner

Membership No.: 36738
Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th April, 2017
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“HPPL is a business with purpose ..…

It is HPPL’s belief that good ethics make good business sense. We are a business with purpose – to positively contribute to 
the society in which we operate. We believe in continuous improvement and innovation.

For over 80 years, we have been the leaders in providing customised packaging solutions for a vast variety of products, 
continuously bringing in new technologies and solutions; expanding the application of packaging solutions to a vast range of 
items of daily consumption, optimising the usage of packaging materials and manufacturing processes leading to better value 
for our customers and for their end users i.e. the consumers. On account of the very nature of our business, HPPL believes 
that strong ethics is fundamental to our business. After all our packaging solutions bring thousands of consumer products 
safely and hygienically to the end consumers. Packaging is the first handshake a consumer actually has with a product. 
Our Packaging helps that handshake to create trust in the consumer for the product and the brand. It brings vast volumes 
of products safely and hygienically to the consumer. Our business processes were build on a solid foundation of high ethical 
standards. And we believe it is vital to continuously remind ourselves, and our stakeholders, about our business philosophy.

“The confluence of three of the most respected packaging companies in India . . . creating a larger, stronger HPPL…..”

On 30th January 2015, we completed the acquisition of 100% of the equity shares of Positive Packaging Industries Ltd. India 
(Positive), making HPPL a leader in the consumer packaging sector in the wider Asia-Pacific-Africa region (excluding Japan).

On 1st April, 2017, we crossed another milestone in our history. We completed the legal merger of Positive with HPPL. On this 
date, Webtech Labels Private Ltd., India’s top quality producer of Pressure Sensitive Labels, a company we have partnered 
since 2012, also merged with HPPL. Thus creating an even larger, stronger HPPL.

Our teams have worked tirelessly through the year to complete the merger process seamlessly, steering the company through 
the typical complexities of bringing together business processes, IT systems, customer and supplier interfaces across 14 
manufacturing sites, without any disruption in normal manufacturing operations and customer service. We will now take on the 
next task of creating a common ERP platform across all our manufacturing sites in 2017–2018.

And even as we were going about this significant task, we took on the challenge of building two more greenfield operations 
in North East India, in line with our objective to build a manufacturing base for even stronger growth in future. You will find an 
introduction to these two new plants – in Guwahati and Sikkim – later in this note.

” 2016 – a VUCA year.....”

Across the Globe, we experienced VUCA – a Volatile, Uncertain, Complex and Ambiguous environment.

The Global economy remains constrained by slow growth in GDP and in global trade. The World Economy grew by just 2.2% 
against an expectation of 2.7%, the slowest since 2009. Many commodity exporting countries were struggling as the sustained 
low price levels of crude and commodities through most of 2016 led to a series of difficulties in terms of base GDP growth, 
falling purchasing power in the hands of the consumers, forex availability and wildly fluctuating exchange rates.

In addition adverse geo-political developments, have made the medium term prospects more complex and uncertain. Witness 
the increased incidence of terrorism, the migrant crisis in Europe and other developed countries; Brexit; change in leadership 
and shift in policies with respect to protectionism, changes in the worlds’ largest economy increasing protectionism in the US.

Coming to domestic events, on 8th November, as HPPL was celebrating 20 years of success of its Silvassa plant, the 
Government announced demonitisation. This created chaos amongst consumers, since cash, which was still the main mode 
of exchange for over 80% of India’s population, almost disappeared overnight and remained scarce for a while thereafter. 
The event had a direct and severe adverse impact on our customers, both in traditional distribution and organised retail. 
Consequently, HPPL sales were impacted, with customers postponing despatches or canceling orders. (The negative impact 
of demonitisation on supply chains was also felt in Q1 2017).

The Government has declared its intention of implementing GST with effect from July 1, 2017. This will be a breakthrough 
moment for India, with a potential to push up GDP growth. Our customers are likely to have higher growth opportunities and, 
consequently, HPPL can benefit from this growth momentum. However, implementation of GST (which, in many ways, is like 
rolling out a common ERP platform for the whole country at one go) is expected to have its own challenges and there will be a 
period when difficulties in trading conditions may be expected.

“2016 was a year of ups and downs . . . performing in uncertain times . . .”

Our consolidated net sales in the year 2016 moved up to ` 2,154 crores from ` 2,010 crores in 2015, a growth of 7%. 
Consolidated EPS moved up to ` 11.27 per share from ` 10.58 in the previous year. This was achieved against a backdrop of 
sluggish market growth. Sales volume growth in the fast moving consumer goods industry (FMCG) was in low single digits and 
marketers continued to focus on cost and price points, due to pressures arising from, among other reasons, the movement of 
crude from USD 37 per barrel in Jan 2016 to USD 50 per barrel in Dec 2016.
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We continued on our established path of customer service, innovation and market expansion. To add to our focus on customer 
development, we have created an independent New Customer Territory Development (NCTD) team which moves into new 
geographies and connects with smaller customers and start-ups.

”Creativity involves breaking out of established patterns in order to look at things in a different way.”

 Edward de Bono

Growth and new product development was driven by our Innovation Program (NASP). NASP is institutionalized within HPPL, 
with various team members at various levels taking it up as a personal mission, making it an important component of the 
culture of HPPL.

Our NASP program helps our customers in many ways, of which two are particularly noteworthy. Our new products, which are 
based on upgraded technology processes, serve our customers’ need for adding value to their products and offer additional 
benefits to their consumers. We also continuously work on solutions which offer cost advantages without compromising 
performance.

Hence, NASP creates business growth, but equally important, it also protects or even improves existing business share from 
a customer by creating improved packaging solutions, or improving cost competitiveness.

In the year 2016, we added 198 new brands to our portfolio of products that we package. We successfully commercialized over 
200 NASP projects, bringing in new business for HPPL. Our products were recognized by distinguished industry bodies, and 
were awarded 2 World Stars, 5 Asia Stars, 3 IFCA Stars and an ET Polymers Award.

We moved ahead on our “small is beautiful” strategy. We are fortunate in having amongst our customers, entrepreneurial and 
innovative small FMCG companies that have witnessed faster growth. We will continue to actively develop strong relationships 
with such customers and grow with them.

“The future belongs to those who prepare for it today . . .”

1)	 New factory at Guwahati:

	 The east and north-east of India are showing good economic growth and many FMCG and durable products players – 
Bajaj, Dabur, ITC, Emami, Godrej, HUL, Pidilite, amongst many others – have set up manufacturing plants there. Govern-
ment is also offering fiscal benefits to encourage industry and job creation.

	 Our Guwahati plant is spread across 145,000 square feet area in an industrial hub near the main city. We completed the 
initial phase of this project in record time and started operations in March 2017. This plant is set up to be a fully integrated 
plant manufacturing flexible packaging materials with gravure cylinder and allied support infrastructure. This plant will help 
us to complete our pan-India presence for supporting our customers with flexible packaging materials.

2)	 New factory in Sikkim:

	 Webtech, an HPPL subsidiary (which merged with HPPL on 1st April 2017), is India’s leading pressure sensitive (PS) label 
producer of specialised, high end pharma labels. Most of our pharma customers have set up manufacturing facilities in 
Sikkim because of the beneficial environment created by the State Government.

	 We have set up a PS label manufacturing plant in Sikkim to support our existing customers and also focus on market 
expansion. This plant was also built in record time and started operations in March 2017.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

On 22nd February, 2017, the Mumbai Bench of National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) approved the Scheme of Arrangement 
of Positive Packaging Industries Limited and Webtech Labels Private Limited with Huhtamaki PPL Ltd., and their respective 
shareholders and creditors. Consequently, in the discussions below, any reference to the amounts in respect of 2016 represent 
the merged figures for all three entities. This is compared with the consolidated result of year 2015.

Sales Revenues

Gross sales for the year 2016 stood at ` 235,692 lakhs against ` 219,624 lakhs for the year 2015. Net Sales grew by  
7.2 % to ` 215,410 lakhs in 2015 from ` 200,975 lakhs the previous year.

Other Income

In 2016, Other Income was ` 1,723 lakhs against ` 1,424 lakhs for 2015.
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Dividend income grew from ` 887 lakhs in 2015 to ` 1,005 lakhs in 2016.

Interest income amounted to ` 182 lakhs in 2016 against ` 261 lakhs in 2015 and other miscellaneous income increased to ` 
535 lakhs from ` 279 lakhs for 2015.

Value Addition

During 2016, value addition (VA) improved in absolute terms to ` 68,700 lakhs representing 31.9 % of net sales, from  
` 64,318 lakhs - 32.0 % of net sales in 2015.

Expenditure

Total expenses, excluding raw material costs, depreciation and financial expenses, amounted to `46,355 lakhs or 21.5 % of 
net sales in 2016 against ` 43,855 lakhs or 21.8 % of net sales in the previous year.

Power and fuel expenses remained at 3.5 % of net sales despite an absolute increase from ` 7,094 lakhs in Y 2015 to  
` 7,483 lakhs in Y 2016.

Personnel expenses increased from ` 17,704 lakhs in 2015 to ` 19,251 lakhs in 2016.

Depreciation remained almost flat - ` 9,098 lakhs in Y 2016 against ` 9,053 lakhs for 2015. As a percentage of net sales, it 
dropped to 4.2% from 4.5% in the previous year.

Finance cost for 2016 was ` 3,331 lakhs against ` 4,035 lakhs for the previous year. It largely comprises interest of  
` 2,695 lakh on 7% Unsecured debentures issued to Huhtalux s.a.r.l. for acquisition of Positive Packaging.

PBT, Tax, PAT, Cash Profit

Profit before tax was ` 14,008 lakhs in 2016 compared to ` 11,563 lakhs in 2015.

Tax expenses rose to ̀  5,238 lakhs from ̀  3,690 lakhs for 2015 as the exemptions enjoyed by Rudrapur and Parwanoo ceased 
during the course of 2016.

Net Profit after tax for the year 2016 was ` 8,515 lakhs compared to ` 7,873 lakhs for 2015.

Cash Profit, i.e. Profit after tax but before depreciation was ` 17,612 lakhs against ` 16,926 lakhs for the previous year.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share for Y 2016 stood at ` 11.27 per share against ` 10.58 per share for the previous year.

Dividend

The dividend on equity shares is at 150% (` 3.00 per share). This will absorb ` 2,784 lakhs ( ` 2,450 lakhs for 2015) including 
an amount of ` 478 lakhs (`414 lakhs for 2015) towards dividend distribution tax.

Share Capital

Paid up Equity Capital of the company at the end of 2016 remained at ` 1,454 lakhs - same as at the end of 2015.

Reserves & Surplus

At the end of the 2016 , Reserves and Surplus were at ` 45,874 lakhs against ` 60,414 lakhs at the end of 2015.

Book value per share stands at ` 62.38 against ` 87.99 for the previous year.

The decrease in Reserves and Surplus is on account of Goodwill being adjusted against Reserves as per schemes of 
amalgamation. Further, on 6th April 2017, in terms of the amalgamation between Huhtamaki PPL Ltd and Webtech Labels Pvt. 
Ltd., 28,10,000 Equity shares of `2 each of the company have been allotted to shareholders of Webtech Labels Pvt. Ltd., for 
10,000 shares held by them in the share capital of Webtech Labels Pvt. Ltd., in the ratio of 281:1, which have been considered 
in calculation of book value per share.

Borrowings

Long term borrowings at the end of 2016 stood at ` 40,821 lakhs against ` 43,521 lakhs at the end of 2015 comprised of, 
mainly, ` 38,500 lakhs of 7% Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures issued to Huhtalux S.a.r.l. on private placement basis. 
The Debentures are due for redemption on January 27, 2020.

Debt equity ratio (excluding revaluation reserve) as on 31st December, 2016 was at 0.86:1.
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Capital Expenditure and Fixed Assets

Addition to Gross Block (tangible assets) of ` 71,996 lakhs during 2016 includes ` 70,961 lakhs added pursuant to the merger 
of Positive Packaging and Webtech with HPPL. Capital work in progress as at 31st Dec 2016 was ` 199 lakhs compared to ` 
379 lakhs as at 31st Dec 2015.

Inventory

Inventories at the end of 2016 stood at ` 18,250 lakhs against ` 15,607 lakhs at end-2015. Accordingly, holding period 
increased from 28 days to 31 days.

Debtors

At the end of 2016 , Sundry Debtors stood at ` 46,279 lakhs against `41,887 lakhs at the end of 2015. Debtors at the end of 
2016, represent 78 days of sale against 76 days in 2015.

Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors at the end of 2016 amounted to ` 32,579 lakhs against ` 28,674 lakhs at the end of Y 2015. Trade creditors 
represent 55 days of sale (52 days for the previous year). Other liabilities at ` 15,277 lakhs (` 12,789 lakhs for 2015) mainly 
comprise ` 6,330 lakhs of retention money payable to the erstwhile shareholders of Positive Packaging Industies Ltd. for 
purchase of shares from them and ` 1,188 lakhs of Interest on debentures (accrued but not due).

Loans & Advances

Loans and Advances of ` 6,423 lakhs (` 6,071 lakhs in 2015) largely comprise balances and deposits with Customs, Excise 
and Sales Tax Authorities, Advance Income Tax (net of provision) and MAT Credit entitlement.

Cash Flow From Operations

During the current year, cash flow from operations amounted to ` 16,643 lakhs against ` 31,620 lakhs in 2015.

Return on Capital Employed

With EBIT of ` 17,339 lakhs and capital employed of ` 91,012 lakhs, the ROCE is 19.05 %.

Return on Net Worth

With Profit after Tax at ` 8,515 lakhs and Net Worth of ` 47,384 lakhs, the RONW is 17.97 %.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

We zealously protect our reputation of being an ethical company built over decades of operations. Ethical behavior at all 
levels of operations and adherence to applicable laws together with a robust system of Internal Financial Control enables 
the management to focus on growth and excellence. Controls at various operating locations and offices are reviewed by the 
Internal Audit team regularly.

Qualified professionals comprise the Internal Audit team. The Internal Audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee at the 
beginning of the financial year. The team reports significant findings to the company’s Audit Committee.

Frequent interactions with the statutory auditors ensure that control objectives are duly aligned to the company’s vision. Scope 
of work and coverage are periodically reviewed and revised depending on specific issues that have been identified.

RISK MANAGEMENT

HPPL is a growing organization with a nationwide footprint and significant exports. Risks arise and evolve over different 
dimensions. Operations, businesses and supply chains, plants and branch offices are always on the lookout for opportunities 
with entrepreneurial zeal. Managing risk while creating value is a tough balancing act that requires the support of a strong 
framework.

HPPL follows the Enterprise Risk management (ERM) framework. At the heart of the ERM framework is the globally accepted 
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organisations) Internal Control – Integrated framework . However, necessary customization 
is done to suit HPPL’s unique business needs.

Key risks in the overall context include product pricing, growth and market share, raw material availability and cost, energy 
availability and cost, employee attrition, foreign exchange rate management and overall environment.

Intensity and frequency of risk monitoring depends on the context with a stress on sustainable, long-term solutions. The board 
periodically assesses all facets of risk.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (contd.)
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Our People….

”Great things in business are never done by one person. They’re done by a team of people.”

 Steve Jobs

It is appropriate to repeat our clear people philosophy. “It is people who face and overcome challenges. Their approach, 
knowledge, commitment and actions are what finally deliver. An open, hands-on culture, which involves and empowers, which 
believes in sharing and training, and inculcates pride in knowledge – all this is our philosophy and we need to continuously 
ensure that it is also our practice.”

In 2016, we focused even more on enhancing our people capabilities by stepping up our training and development efforts, 
growing internal talent and recruiting top talent from the external market, where required.

We ushered in several transformation programs, launched the annual Training Calendar, undertook a review of our people 
policies, embarked on an employee wellness programme, focused on strengthening our succession plan process and 
undertook job rotation. We also participated in people programs initiated by the Huhtamaki Group, like employee engagement 
feedback and actions..

Special focus continued on Safety, Hygiene and 5S initiatives.

An HR Council was constituted to give a cross functional direction to our people policies. An essential part of our focus is our 
commitment to diversity. A Women@Work programme was launched under which a select group of women employees have 
been constituted to review and recommend on relevant work practices.

As conveyed earlier, the people of HPPL, Positive and Webtech have been working as one team since the date of acquisition. 
We took several initiatives to bring about the feeling of “togetherness” through cross-functional teams working on various 
projects, planning and executing integration activities, participation in quarterly rewards and recognition programs and sharing 
of good people practices.

The challenges of the legal merger, integration processes, building two green field factories in record time, and the complexities 
and hard work in taking advantage of opportunities available, have all stretched our people. They have coped with all these 
pressures as true fighters and have become stronger to face new challenges.

“The future depends on what you do today.”

 Mahatma Gandhi

The larger, stronger HPPL of today combines the ethics in governance and values which have stood the test of time, with the 
latest technologies, a committed group of people, a culture of innovation, a strong customer base and financial stability. In a 
dynamic and ever-challenging environment, this combination gives us a strong base for future success and growth.

We closed 2016 with a solid market position. We expect to become stronger going forward and are cautiously optimistic in the 
medium to long term.

We look towards the future with quiet confidence. And clearly with the recognition of the hard work to be done.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Contd.)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Huhtamaki PPL Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Huhtamaki PPL Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, in which are incorporated the financial 
information of erstwhile Positive Packaging Industries Limited and Webtech Labels Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as 
“erstwhile Positive” and “erstwhile Webtech”) for the year ended on that date, consequent to obtaining necessary regulatory 
approvals for their amalgamation into the Company, with effect from 1st April, 2017, with the appointed date of 30th January, 
2015 and 1st April, 2015, respectively. This report is issued in supersession of our earlier report dated 21st February, 2017 to the 
extent of matters stated in emphasis of matter paragraph below.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 
the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the 
provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st December, 2016, its profit, and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 50 to the financial statements. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st 
December, 2016 were earlier approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 21st February, 2017. Those financial 
statements have been revised by the Company so as to give effect to the Schemes of Arrangement for amalgamation under 
Sections 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 104 of the Companies Act, 1956 and Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013, of 
erstwhile Positive (a wholly owned subsidiary) and erstwhile Webtech (a 51% owned subsidiary), into the Company, consequent 
to obtaining necessary regulatory approvals for their amalgamation, with effect from 1st April, 2017, with the appointed date of 
30th January, 2015 and 1st April, 2015, respectively. As a result, the aforesaid financial statements are revised by the Company 
to give effect to the said Scheme of Arrangement for amalgamation. Accordingly, we are issuing this Revised Report, on the 
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Revised Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st December, 2016 in supersession of the original report dated 21st 
February, 2017, which hereby stands withdrawn.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1, a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.	 As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

	 (a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

	 (b)	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books;

	 (c)	 The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account;

	 (d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

	 (e)	 On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31st December, 2016, and taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st December, 2016, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

	 (f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

	 (g)	  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements 
– Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

		  ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses;

		  iii.	 There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company; and

		  iv.	 The Company has provided requisite disclosures in Note 52 to these financial statements as to the holding of 
Specified Bank Notes on 8th November, 2016 and 30th December, 2016 as well as dealings in Specified Bank 
Notes during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December, 2016. Based on our audit procedures and 
relying on the management representation regarding the holding and nature of cash transactions, including 
Specified Bank Notes, we report that these disclosures are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained 
by the Company and as produced to us by management.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th April, 2017
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE.

Re: Huhtamaki PPL Limited (‘the Company’)

(i)	 (a) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets.

	 (b) 	 Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were 
identified on such verification.

	 (c) 	 According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable properties, 
other than self-constructed buildings, included in fixed assets are held in the name of the Company, except in case 
of immovable properties with a gross block value of ` 3,093.38 Lacs (net block ` 303.30 Lacs) as at 31st December, 
2016 acquired on account of amalgamation, for which the Company is in the process of registering the title deeds in 
its name.

(ii)	 The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(iii)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured 
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.

(iv)	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, guarantees 
or securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and 
hence not commented upon.

(v)	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi)	 We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central 
Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to manufacture, 
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, 
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)	 (a) 	 Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service 
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly 
deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been delay in one instance towards payment of service 
tax.

	 (b) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, 
cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

	 (c) 	 According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of 
excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of Statute Nature of 
Dues

Period to which 
the amount 

relates
Forum where dispute is pending

Amount ` 
In Lacs

Income Tax Act. 1961 Income Tax 2001-2002 ITAT  23

2007-2009 High Court  67

2007-2014 CIT (Appeals) 857

State and Central 
Sales Tax Act

VAT/CST 2003-2005 Deputy Commissioner  27

2007-2008, 
2010-2011

Joint Commissioner (Appeals) 42

2011-2013 Deputy Commissioner (Appeals)  96

2005-2008 Sales tax Appellate Tribunal  34

Finance Act 1994 - 
Service Tax

Service Tax 2007-2016 Commissioner (Appeals)  130

2008-2014 Joint Secretary 2

2008-2014 Customs, Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

8
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (contd.)

Name of Statute Nature of 
Dues

Period to which 
the amount 

relates
Forum where dispute is pending

Amount ` 
In Lacs

Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty 1989-2014 Customs, Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

945

1997-2015 Commissioner (Appeals)  41

1998-1999 Commissioner  5

2008-2010 Joint Secretary 4

2001-2006 High Court 2

1998-1999, 
2004-2005, 
2009-2010

Deputy Commissioner 3

Customs Act, 1962 Customs 
Duty

2012-2013 Customs, Excise and Service Tax 
Appellate Tribunal

 3

2005-2011 Commissioner (Appeals) 26

(viii)	In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture holders.

(ix)	 According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any money by 
way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(x)	 Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements 
and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or 
no material fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year.

(xi)	 According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid/
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to 
the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii)	 In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are not applicable 
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii)	According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company 
and hence not commented upon.

(xv)	 According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi)	According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th April, 2017
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE REVISED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
OF HUHTAMAKI PPL LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Huhtamaki PPL Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st 
December, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (contd.)
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st December, 2016, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S R B C & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership Number: 36738

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20th April, 2017

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT (contd.)
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BALANCE SHEET
As at 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

Notes  31st December 2016  31st December 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 2  1,454.33  1,454.33 
Share Suspense Account 49  56.20  - 
Reserves and Surplus 3  45,873.72  57,231.55 

 47,384.25  58,685.88 
Non-Current Liabilities
Long - Term borrowings 4  40,820.66  39,980.23 
Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 5  -  236.64 
Other Long Term Liabilities 6  19.91  3,540.05 
Long Term Provisions 7  849.19  73.97 

 41,689.76  43,830.89 
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings 8  17.54  - 
Trade Payables 9
	 Due to Micro and Small Enterprises  488.42  135.45 
	 Due to Others  32,090.66  15,129.81 
Other Current Liabilities 10  15,276.73  7,187.27 
Short Term Provisions 11  5,681.74  3,790.82 

 53,555.09  26,243.35 
TOTAL  142,629.10  128,760.12 

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixed Assets
	 Tangible Assets 12(a)  44,407.50  18,140.92 
	 Intangible Assets 12(b)  1,267.79  482.88 
	 Capital Work in Progress  198.74  335.71 
Non-Current Investments 13  0.03  54,806.50 
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 5  313.75  - 
Long Term Loans & Advances 14  4,240.70  1,565.63 
Other Non Current Assets 15  4.68  0.73 

 50,433.19  75,332.37 
Current Assets
Current Investments 16  19,501.66  20,662.62 
Inventories 17  18,250.05  8,338.34 
Trade Receivables 18  46,279.09  21,748.44 
Cash and Bank Balances 19  3,109.72  1,103.05 
Short Term Loans & Advances 20  2,182.32  660.04 
Other Current Assets 21  2,873.07  915.26 

 92,195.91  53,427.75 
TOTAL  142,629.10  128,760.12 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Suresh Gupta A Venkatrangan S K Palekar
Chairman Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 00235354 DIN: 05294659

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership No. 36738 Parag Vyavahare D V Iyer

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 42739 Membership No. 13004

Mumbai Mumbai
20 April 2017 20 April 2017
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

Notes 31st December 2016 31st December 2015

INCOME

Revenue from Operations  (Gross) 22  235,692.28  123,238.16 

Less : Excise Duty  17,913.73  8,141.17 

Revenue from Operations (Net)  217,778.55  115,096.99 

Other Income 23  1,722.86  1,272.64 

Total Revenue  219,501.41  116,369.63 

EXPENSES

Cost of Raw Materials and Components Consumed 24  147,284.74  80,094.41 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Process 25  (574.47)  (103.78)

Employee Benefit Expenses 26  19,250.64  9,754.83 

Finance Cost 27  3,330.61  2,517.40 

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 28  9,097.66  3,934.75 

Other Expenses 29  27,104.74  13,324.08 

Total Expenses  205,493.92  109,521.69 

Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax  14,007.49  6,847.94 

Exceptional Items (Refer Note 51)  255.00  - 

Profit before Tax  13,752.49  6,847.94 

Tax Expenses

Current Tax  5,864.94  2,148.65 

(Excess)/Short Provision for earlier years written back/provided  110.00  (160.34)

Deferred Tax  (737.41)  (51.31)

Profit for the period  8,514.96  4,910.94 

Earnings per Equity Share including Exceptional Item 
(Nominal value - ` 2 (Previous Year - ` 2))

30

Basic and Diluted  11.27  6.75 

Earnings per Equity Share excluding Exceptional Item 
(Nominal value-`2 (Previous Year-`2))

Basic and Diluted  11.61  6.75 

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Suresh Gupta A Venkatrangan S K Palekar
Chairman Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 00235354 DIN: 05294659

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership No.36738 Parag Vyavahare D V Iyer

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 42739 Membership No. 13004

Mumbai Mumbai
20 April 2017 20 April 2017
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

 31st December 2016  31st December 2015

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit before Tax and exceptional items  14,007.49  6,847.94 

Adjustments for:

	 Depreciation and Amortisation  9,097.66  3,934.75 

	 Unrealised Foreign Exchange Loss/(Gain) (Net)  (17.64)  79.70 

	 Interest Income  (182.10)  (207.17)

	 Dividend Income  (1,005.28)  (886.50)

	 Finance Cost  3,330.61  2,517.40 

	 Provision for Doubtful Debts made / (Written back)  21.07  53.78 

	 Bad debts written off  2.19  7.81 

	 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Current Investments  (9.52)  2.65 

	 Fixed Assets Written Off  9.31  3.45 

	 Provision for Sales Tax made/(Written back)  (79.20)  3.65 

	 Provision for Diminution in value of Current Investments  9.58  - 

	 (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  19.82  (12.34)

Operating Profit before Changes in Working Capital  25,204.00  12,345.12 

Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in:

	 Trade Receivables  (4,791.79)  (54.77)

	 Inventories  (2,636.94)  1,070.25 

	 Loans and Advances  55.01  1,088.44 

	 Other Assets  457.27  635.20 

Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in:

	 Trade Payables  4,335.66  (265.22)

	 Other Current Liabilities  447.08  759.47 

	 Provisions  (143.57)  (101.40)

Cash Generated from Operations  22,926.72  15,477.09 

Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds Received)  (6,028.61)  (1,903.39)

Cash Flow before Exceptional Items  16,898.11  13,573.70 

Exceptional Item (Refer Note 51)  255.00  - 

Net Cash from Operating Activities  16,643.11  13,573.70 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

	 Purchase of Fixed Assets  (2,393.84)  (2,674.05)

	 Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets  59.85  17.70 

	 Purchase of Current Investments  (27,259.50)  (45,187.03)

	 Sale of Current Investments  28,420.40  43,155.55 

	 Acquisition of Subsidiary  -  (44,597.37)

	 Dividend Received  1,005.28  886.50 

	 Interest Received  151.49  207.11 

Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities  (16.32)  (48,191.59)
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

 31st December 2016  31st December 2015

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

	 Issue of Debentures  -  38,500.00 

	 Repayment of Sales Tax deferral loan  (249.29)  (191.55)

	 Repayment of Short term borrowings  (5,155.12)  - 

	 Repayment of Long term borrowings  (3,848.23)  - 

	 Interest Paid  (3,353.25)  (1,310.46)

	 Dividends Paid (Including Dividend Tax thereon)  (2,446.28)  (2,439.46)

Net Cash (used in)/from Financing Activities  (15,052.17)  34,558.53 

Net Increase/ (decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  1,574.62  (59.36)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year  1,099.05  1,158.41 

Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  433.55  - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Close of the Year  3,107.22  1,099.05 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Comprise:

Cash on Hand  13.13  11.41 

Cheques on Hand  49.44  1.24 

Balances in Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks  990.53  569.31 

Balances in Deposit Accounts with Scheduled Banks  1,982.91  450.00 

Balances in Unpaid Dividend Bank Accounts *  71.21  67.09 

 3,107.22  1,099.05 

* These balances are not available for use by the Company, as they represent corresponding unpaid liabilities.

Notes :

1) 	 The above cashflow statement has been prepared under indirect method as per Accounting Standard-3 “Cash Flow 
Statement”.

2) 	 Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements comprise of Cash at Bank and in Hand and short 
term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date
For S R B C & CO LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 324982E/E300003
Suresh Gupta A Venkatrangan S K Palekar
Chairman Managing Director Independent Director
DIN: 00235354 DIN: 05294659

per Vijay Maniar
Partner
Membership No.36738 Parag Vyavahare D V Iyer

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 42739 Membership No. 13004

Mumbai Mumbai
20 April 2017 20 April 2017



67th Annual Report & Accounts 201660

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

	 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India, 
under the historical cost convention (with the exception of freehold land which has been revalued and derivative financial 
instruments which have been measured at fair value), on the accrual basis of accounting and comply in all material respects 
with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The accounting policies have been consistently followed by the company. 

2.	 Use of Estimates

	 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in India 
which requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities.The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are 
based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements 
which in management’s opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions 
used in preparing the accompanying financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively 
in current and future periods.

3.	 Fixed Assets

	 •	 Fixed assets are stated at cost (or revalued amounts as the case may be) less accumulated depreciation & impairment 
losses,if any. Cost of fixed assets comprises of purchase price, duties, levies and any directly attributable cost of 
bringing each asset to its working condition for the intended use.

	 •	 Financing costs relating to borrowed funds attributable to the acquisition of qualifying fixed assets upto the completion 
of construction or acquisition of such fixed assets are included in the gross book value of the asset.

	 •	 Cenvat credit availed for excise duty and countervailing duty availed for customs duty payments made on fixed assets 
is reduced from the cost of fixed assets.

	 •	 Machinery spares which are specific to a particular item of fixed asset and whose use is expected to be irregular are 
capitalised and depreciated over the residual useful life of the asset.

	 •	 Capital work-in-progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to use at the balance sheet date.

4.	 Intangibles

	 Intangible Assets acquired seperately are measured on intial recognition at cost. Following, intial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated 
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement 
of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

5.	 Depreciation

	 a.	 Tangible Assets

		  Buildings are depreciated on written down value method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013, which coincide with management estimate of useful life. Other fixed assets are depreciated on 
straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except those specified 
below. 

		  Following assets are depreciated at the rates different from those prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies  
Act, 2013 based on technical evaluation of estimated useful lives done by the management.

Assets Method of Depreciation Rate

Plant & Machinery Straight Line Method 10.34%

Computers excluding Laptops Straight Line Method 25.00%

Motor Vehicles Straight Line Method 19.00%

Cellphones and Photocopiers Straight Line Method 31.67%

Airconditioning Equipment used in manufacturing process Straight Line Method 10.34%

Electrical Fittings Straight Line Method 10.34%

		  Depreciation on additions/deletions to fixed assets is provided prorata from the month of addition/till the month of 
deletion.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

		  Leasehold Land - Premium paid for acquisition of leasehold land is amortised over the period of lease.

	 b.	 Intangible Assets

		  ERP software is amortised over a period of 60 months commencing from the month in which software is put to use.

		  Specialised software is amortised over a period of 36 months commencing from the month in which such expenditure 
is incurred. All upgradations/enhancements are generally charged to profit and loss account, unless they bring 
significant additional benefits.

		  Goodwill is amortised over a period of 10 years

		  Corporate club membership fees paid are amortised over the period of use, viz 10 years.

		  Non compete fees paid are amortised over the period of restriction, viz 5 years.

6.	 Foreign Currency Transactions

	 •	 Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. 
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in the profit 
and loss account of the year.

	 •	 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end are translated at the 
year end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the profit and loss 
account.

	 •	 Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost. 

	 •	 The premium or discount on forward exchange contracts covered by AS-11 The Effects of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates is recognised over the period of the contracts in the profit and loss account. Exchange gain or loss 
on forward exchange contracts covered by AS-11 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates is recognised 
in the profit and loss account.

	 •	 In compliance with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) announcement dated 29th March, 2008 on 
accounting for derivatives, the mark to market valuation loss on forward contracts entered into, to cover the forecast 
transactions is charged to profit and loss account. Gain on Mark to Market valuation is ignored.

	 •	 Operations of foreign branch are classified as ”Integral foreign operations”. Revenue and expenses are translated 
at the monthly average rate. Monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated at the year end exchange 
rates. Non-monetary items comprising of fixed assets are translated using exchange rate at the date of transaction. 
The net exchange difference resulting from the translations of items in the financial statements of the foreign branch 
are recognized as income/expense for the year.

7.	 Inventories

	 •	 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined on Weighted Average Method.

	 •	 Raw materials, Components, Stores and Spares held for use in production of Inventories are not written down below 
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

	 •	 The cost of manufactured inventories and Work-In-Process is the direct cost of manufacture plus appropriate allocated 
overheads & excise duty wherever applicable.

	 •	 The cost of loose tools is amortised over its estimated useful life.

8.	 Revenue Recognition

	 •	 Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenue 
can be reliably measured. It is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods have passed to 
the buyer.

	 •	 Gross sales are inclusive of Excise Duty.

	 •	 Sales are net of returns & discounts.

	 •	 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is unconditional at the balance sheet date.

	 •	 Interest on investments is accounted on a time proportion basis taking into account the amounts invested and the rate 
of interest.

9.	 Retirement Benefits

	 a.	 Defined Contribution Plans:

		  Contributions payable to the recognised provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan, are charged to the profit 
and loss account as incurred.
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	 b.	 Defined Benefit Plans:

		  The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme and Long service awards are defined benefit plan. The Company’s net 
obligation in respect of the defined benefit schemes are calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit are discounted to 
determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.

		  The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans are determined based on actuarial valuation 
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of 
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

		  The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for 
determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans are based on the market yields on 
Government securities as at the balance sheet date.

		  Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

	 c.	 Other Long Term Employment Benefits :

		  Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which 
the employee renders the related services are considered as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes 
and are determined on the basis of valuations, as at balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary 
using Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects 
of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Profit and Loss Account. The company 
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to 
defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

		  Pension is other long term benefits scheme. The present value of the obligation under this long term benefit is 
determined based on actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method.

10.	 Investments

	 •	 Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which 
such Investments are made, are classified as current Investments. All other Investments are classified as Long Term 
Investments.

	 •	 Long term investments are valued at cost and an appropriate provision is made for diminution, which is other than 
temporary, in their value.

	 •	 Current investments are valued at cost or fair value, whichever is lower.

11.	 Research Expenditure

	 Research expenditure of a revenue nature is charged off in the year in which it is incurred and expenditure of a capital 
nature is capitalised to fixed assets.

12.	 Taxation

	 Income tax expense comprises current income tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the 
income tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting 
income and taxable income for the period). The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities 
or assets are recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance 
sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be 
realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred 
tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the 
case may be) to be realized.

	 Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company 
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the company will pay 
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the 
year in which the company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for 
Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way 
of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The company reviews the “MAT Credit 
Entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing 
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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13.	 Leases 

	 Operating Leases – Where the Company is lessee/lessor.

	 Lease payments / receipts under operating leases are recognised as an expense / income in the statement of profit and 
loss account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

14.	 Impairment of Assets

	 The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based 
on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing 
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the  assets. After impairment, 
depreciation is provided on their revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

15.	 Government Grants and Subsidies

	 Grants and Subsidies from the Governments are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that (i) the company 
will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grants / subsidy will be received.

	 Government Grants of the nature of Promoter Contribution are credited to Capital Reserve and treated as part of the 
Shareholders Funds.

16.	 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

	 The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an 
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent 
liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an 
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow 
of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

	 Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

	 Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually 
and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in 
the period in which the change occurs.

17.	 Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR)

	 The Cost of Cash-settled Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) is measured initially using intrinsic value method at the 
grant date taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. This intrinsic value 
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with recognition of corresponding liability. This liability is 
remeasured at each Balance Sheet date up to and including the settlement date with changes in intrinsic value recognised 
in Profit and Loss Account.

	 The SARs that do not vest because of failure to satisfy vesting condition are reversed by a credit to employee compensation 
expense, equal to the amortised cost in respect of the lapsed portion.

18.	 Earnings Per Share ( EPS)

	 Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average 
number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except where the results would be 
anti dilutive.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

No. 31 December 2016 31 December 2015

2 SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED CAPITAL
404,000,000 (Previous Year 150,000,000) 

Equity shares of ` 2/- each  8,080.00  3,000.00 

 29,00,000 (Previous Year 700,000)

Preference Shares of ` 100/- each  2,900.00  700.00 

300,000 (Previous Year 300,000) Unclassified 

Shares of ` 100/- each  300.00  300.00 

11,280.00  4,000.00 

11,280.00  4,000.00 

Increase in Authorised Share Capital is as per the Scheme of Amalgamation between Huhtamaki PPL Limited and 
Positive Packaging Industries Limited, for which necessary forms have been filed by the Company with Registrar of 
Companies.

ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL
72,711,934 (Previous Year: 72,711,934) Equity 

Shares of `2/- each fully paid-up.  1,454.24  1,454.24 

Add :  Amount Received on 1,449 (Previous Year 1,449) 
Forfeited Shares.  0.09  1,454.33  0.09  1,454.33 

TOTAL  1,454.33  1,454.33 

a	 Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
Nos.  `  in lac Nos.  ` in lac 

	 At the beginning of the period 72,711,934  1,454.24 72,711,934  1,454.24 

	 Add: Issued during the year  -  -  -  - 

	 Outstanding at the end of the period 72,711,934  1,454.24 72,711,934  1,454.24 

b	 Terms / Rights attached to equity shares.

	 The company has only one class of Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Equity Capital having a par value of ` 2/- per 
share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividend in 
Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

	 During the year ended 31st December 2016, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to 
equity shareholders is ` 3.00 (31 December 2015 : ` 2.80)

	 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets 
of the Company, after distribution of all Preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number 
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c	 Shares held by holding company

	 Out of equity shares issued by the company,shares held by its holding company are as follows :

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Nos.  `  in lac Nos.  ` in lac 

	 Huhtavefa B.V., Netherlands,The Holding Company 50,003,997  1,000.08 50,003,997  1,000.08 

d	 Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company.

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

	 Equity shares of `2/- each fully paid up Nos. % holding 
in the class

Nos. % holding 
in the class

	 Huhtavefa B.V., Netherlands,The Holding Company 50,003,997 68.77% 50,003,997 68.77%

	 HDFC Trustee Company Limited (A/c HDFC Midcap 
Opportunities Fund) 3,880,725 5.34% 3,880,725 5.34%

As per the records of the company,including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from 
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships 
of shares.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  700.00  700.00 

Add: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  897.22  - 

Less: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  (1,597.22)  -  -  700.00 

Securities Premium Account

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  21,155.98  21,155.98 

Add: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  22,125.22 -

Less: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  (43,281.20)  -  -  21,155.98 

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Balance as per last Balance sheet  1,925.00  - 

Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss (Refer Note (a) below)  1,925.00  3,850.00  1,925.00  1,925.00 

Revaluation Reserve  275.77  275.77 

Capital Reserve

Balance as per last Balance Sheet  30.00  30.00 

Add: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  30.00  60.00  -  30.00 

General Reserve 

Balance as per last Balance sheet  9,345.12  8,975.27 

Add: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  3,000.00  - 

Less : Adjusted for Depreciation (Refer Note (b) below)  -  (122.15)

Less: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  (5,387.67)  - 

Add: Amount transferred from Surplus balance in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss  887.00  7,844.45  492.00  9,345.12 

Surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss

Balance as per last financial statement  23,799.68  23,756.14 

Profit for the year  8,514.96  4,910.94 

Add: Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  4,683.68  - 

Add: Profit of Transferor Companies from appointed date till 
31 December 2015  2,440.69  - 

Less : Appropriations   

Proposed Final Equity Dividend (Amount per/share ` 3.00 
(31st Dec 2015: ` 2.80))  (2,305.66)  (2,035.93)

Tax on Proposed Equity Dividend  (477.85)  (414.47)

Transferred to General Reserve  (887.00)  (492.00)

Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve  (1,925.00)  (1,925.00)

Net Surplus in the statement of Profit & Loss  33,843.50  23,799.68 

Total Reserves and Surplus  45,873.72  57,231.55 

(a)	 Debenture Redemption Reserve has been created in terms of Section 71 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b)	 During the previous year w.e.f. 1 January 2015, the Company had adopted estimated useful life of fixed assets as 
stipulated by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. As per the transitional provision, depreciation of ` 122.15 
lacs (net of deferred tax of ` 62.90 lacs) on account of assets whose useful life is already exhausted on January 
1, 2015 has been adjusted against General Reserve.
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

4 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
3,850 (Previous Year: 3,850) 7% Unsecured Non-Convertible 
Debentures of `10 lacs each (Refer Note a)  38,500.00  38,500.00 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan - Telangana ( Unsecured) (Refer 
Note b)  1,192.02  1,480.23 

Deferred Sales Tax Loan - Maharashtra ( Unsecured) (Refer 
Note c)  71.20  -   

External commercial borrowings from Standard Chartered 
Bank (Secured) (Refer Note d)  906.85  -   

Indian Rupee Loans from Banks (secured) (Refer Note e)  150.59  -   

 40,820.66  39,980.23 

a. 	 During the previous year, the Company had issued 3,850 Non Convertible Debentures of `10 lacs each to 
Huhtalux S.a.r.l. on private placement basis. The Debentures are listed and due for redemption on January 27, 
2020.

b. 	 The Company has availed unsecured interest free Sales tax deferral loan from the Government of Telangana 
for its Hyderabad (Bollarum) factory, in accordance with their sales tax deferral scheme. The above amount is 
repayable after 14 years from the date of availment of the loan. The loan is repayable annually on 1st April with 1st 
instalment was due on 1st April 2011 and last one being due on 1st April 2021.

c. 	 The Company has availed interest free sales tax deferral loan from Government of Maharashtra for one of its 
factories in Maharashtra. The Loan is repayable after 10 years from the date of availment of loan in 5 equal 
installment. These loans are repayable annually in April with 1st installment being due in April 2008 and April 2011 
and last one being due in April 2017 and April 2020.

d. 	 Loan of USD 100 lacs - Repayable in 15 equal quarterly installments commenced from December 2014 along with 
interest rate of 3 months LIBOR plus 349 basis points.

e. 	 Indian Rupee loan from bank of `150.59 lacs carries interest @ 11.40% p.a. The loan is repayable in 54 monthly 
installments of principal component of ̀  6.55 lacs each after completion of moratorium of six months from the date 
of loan. The loan is secured by hypothecation of Machineries of erstwhile Webtech Labels Private Limited (now 
part of Huhtamaki PPL Limited).

31 December 2016 31 December 2016

5 DEFERRED TAX (ASSET) / LIABILITY (NET)
Deferred Tax Liability arising on account of timing differences 
in :

-WDV of Fixed Assets  567.30  639.08 

 567.30  639.08 

Deferred Tax Asset arising on account of timing differences 
in :

- 	 Provision for doubtful debts  68.59  45.17 

- 	 Provision for retirement benefits  416.88  182.22 

- 	� Effect of expenditure debited to Profit & Loss account but    
allowed for Tax purposes in following years  395.58  175.05 

 881.05  402.44 

Deferred Tax (Asset) / Liability (Net)  (313.75)  236.64 

31 December 2016 31 December 2016

6 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Retention Money Payable (Refer Note below)  -    3,540.05 

Security Deposit Received  19.91  -   

 19.91  3,540.05 

The same represents money payable to erstwhile shareholders of Positive Packaging Industries Limited
for purchase of shares from them.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2016

7 LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits  823.27  73.97 
Provision for Stock Appreciation Rights (Refer Note 45)  25.92  -   

 849.19  73.97 

31 December 2016 31 December 2016

8 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Cash Credit from Banks (secured)  17.54  -   

 17.54  -   
Cash Credit from Banks carries interest @ 12% p.a. and is secured against hypothecation of stocks and book 
debts of erstwhile Webtech Labels Private Limited and  erstwhile Positive Packaging Industries Limited (now part of 
Huhtamaki PPL Limited)

31 December 2016 31 December 2016

9 TRADE PAYABLES
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises  488.42  135.45 
Dues to Other than Micro and Small Enterprises  32,090.66  15,129.81 

 32,579.08  15,265.26 

31 December 2016 31 December 2016

10 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Unclaimed dividend *  71.21  67.09 
Advance from Customers  338.92  83.78 
Employee Benefits Payable  3,111.37  1,943.30 
Employee Statutory Liabilities Payable  164.09  76.71 
Taxes payable  705.92  345.32 
TDS Payable  284.92  180.34 
Creditors for Capital Goods  234.71  244.50 
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings (Refer note 4)  2,789.64  249.29 
Interest accrued and due  33.07  26.59 
Interest accrued but not due  1,188.53  1,180.35 
Retention Money Payable (Refer Note (a) below)  6,330.05  2,790.00 
Others  24.30  -   

 15,276.73  7,187.27 
a. 	 The same represents money payable to erstwhile shareholders of Positive Packaging Industries Limited for 

purchase of shares from them.
	 * There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education & Protection Fund.

31 December 2016 31 December 2016

11 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax )  1,638.24  446.05 
Provision for Employee Benefits  801.56  457.29 
Provision for Mark to Market losses on Derivative Contracts  0.42  0.13 
Provision for Losses on Derivative Contracts (as per AS11-
Revised)  4.89  39.53 
Provision for Litigations (Refer Note below)  453.12  397.42 
Proposed Equity dividend  2,305.66  2,035.93 
Provision for Tax on Proposed Equity Dividend  477.85  414.47 

 5,681.74  3,790.82 
Provision for Litigations
At the beginning of the year  397.42  352.87 
Add : Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation (Refer note 49)  191.21  -   
Add : Created during the year  30.71  104.50 
Less : Unused amount reversed / utilised during the year  (166.22)  (59.95)
At the end of the year  453.12  397.42 

Provision for Litigation represents provision made by the company in respect of disputed Indirect Tax matters.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

No.12 (b) - Fixed Assets

Intangible Assets

(` in lacs)

Non Compete
Fees

Computer
Software

Club 
Membership Goodwill  Total 

Gross Block

Balance as at 01-01-2015  -    1,534.91  55.15  -    1,590.06 

Additions  -    451.61  -    -    451.61 

Deletions  -    5.62  -    -    5.62 

Balance as at 31-12-2015  -    1,980.90  55.15  -    2,036.05 

Additions  -    108.29  -    -    108.29 

Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  414.00  571.37  -    2,212.12  3,197.49 

Deletions  -    3.20  -    -    3.20 

Balance as at 31-12-2016  414.00  2,657.36  55.15  2,212.12  5,338.63 

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 01-01-2015  -    1,282.02  23.61  -    1,305.63 

Additions  -    247.63  5.53  -    253.16 

Deletions  -    5.62  -    -    5.62 

Balance as at 31-12-2015  -    1,524.03  29.14  -    1,553.17 

Additions  82.80  313.20  5.53  141.96  543.49 

Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  262.93  470.97  957.38  1,691.28 

Deletions  -    3.22  -    3.22 

Balance as at 31-03-2016  345.73  2,304.98  34.67  1,099.34  3,784.72 

Impairment

Balance as at 01-01-2015  -    -    -    -    -   

Charge for the year  -    -    -    -    -   

Reversal during the year  -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31-12-2015  -    -    -    -    -   

Charge for the year  -    -    -    -    -   

Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  -    0.16  -    285.96  286.12 

Reversal during the year  -    -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 31-12-2016  -    0.16  -    285.96  286.12 

Net Block

Balance as at 31-12-2015  -    456.87  26.01  -    482.88 

Balance as at 31-12-2016  68.27  352.22  20.48  826.82  1,267.79 
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

13 NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
Trade Investments (valued at cost unless stated 
otherwise)
Unquoted Equity Shares
Investment in Subsidiaries
Nil Equity Shares (Previous Year: 10,408) of `10/-each fully 
paid of Webtech Labels Private Limited (Refer Note 49)  -    3,879.13 

Nil Equity shares (Previous Year: 44,833,562) of ` 10 each 
fully paid of Positive Packaging Industries Limited (Refer 
Note 49)  -    50,927.37 

Other Investments
100 Equity shares (31 December 2015 - Nil Equity Shares)  
of ` 25 each fully paid up in Shamrao Vithal Co-operative 
Bank Ltd  0.03  -   

 0.03  54,806.50 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

14 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Capital Advances
Unsecured,Considered good  523.46  126.38 

Security Deposit
Unsecured,Considered good  872.58  391.57 

Advances recoverable in Cash or in Kind
Unsecured,Considered good  35.92  20.82 

Other Loans & Advances (Unsecured considered good)
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision )  380.46  223.29 

Advance Fringe Benefit Tax (Net of Provision)  21.51  21.01 

MAT Credit Receivable  1,122.00  157.21 

Loans/Advances to Staff  13.72  16.39 

Prepaid Expenses  27.26  1.49 

Balances with Customs, Excise & Sales Tax Authorities etc  1,243.79  607.47 

 4,240.70  1,565.63 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured,considered good unless stated otherwise.

Margin Money deposit  3.38  -   

Non-Current bank balances being Deposits with original 
maturity of more than 12 months  1.30  0.73 

 4.68  0.73 

Margin Money Deposit pertains to deposit given to a Bank for Bank Guarantee issued for EPCG Licenses

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

16 CURRENT INVESTMENTS (valued at lower of 
cost & fair value, unless stated otherwise)
UNITS OF MUTUAL FUND - QUOTED Face 

Value
Nos.  Amount Nos.  Amount 

Birla Sun Life Floating Rate Fund-STP-DDR  100 2,382,452  2,382.93  3,525,397  3,526.11 

Kotak Floater Short Term Fund -DDR  1,012 146,729  1,484.34  361,706  3,659.10 

DHL Pramerica Insta Cash Plus Fund-DDR  100 1,297,737  1,301.68  -    -   

Kotak Low Duration Fund - Std - Weekly Dividend  1,016 202,586  2,056.56  -    -   

ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Term Fund - DDR  10 11,116,512  1,139.80  -    -   

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income Plan-DDR  106 2,283,094  2,412.78  -    -   

Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund Super IP-
DDR

 10 35,099,483  3,536.69  -    -   

HDFC Cash Management Fund Treasury 
Advantage - DDR

 10 15,706,619  1,586.47  -    -   

Reliance Medium Term Fund-DDR  17 21,060,090  3,600.41  -    -   

Axis Liquid Fund -DDR  1,000  -    -    151,108  1,511.57 

Franklin India TMA - Super IP - DDR  1,001  -    -    370,122  3,703.87 

ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund-DDR  100  -    -    1,588,835  1,590.89 

UTI Money Market Fund -IP-DDR  1,003  -    282,016  2,829.71 

Reliance Liquid Fund TP -DDR  1,529  -    192,388  2,941.11 

DWS Insta Cash Plus Fund - DDR  100  -    897,531  900.26 

TOTAL  19,501.66  20,662.62 

Net Asset Value of Mutual Fund Units  19,501.66  20,662.62 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

17 INVENTORIES (Valued at lower of cost and net realizable 
value)
Raw Materials and Components [includes in transit `988.82 
Lacs (31 Dec 2015 ` 277.34 Lacs)]

 9,871.03  3,917.32 

Work in Process  3,269.14  1,745.23 

Finished Goods  2,010.19  910.47 

Stores & Spares  1,844.59  841.74 

Loose Tools  1,255.11  923.58 

TOTAL  18,250.05  8,338.34 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

18 Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

Outstanding for more than six months from the date they are 
due for payment

	 Considered Good  292.80  -   

    	 Considered Doubtful  198.19  130.52 

 490.99  130.52 

Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables  198.19  130.52 

 292.80  -   

Other Receivables
Considered Good  45,986.29  21,748.44 

Considered Doubtful  -    -   

 45,986.29  21,748.44 

Less : Provision for Doubtful Receivables  -    -   

TOTAL  46,279.09  21,748.44 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

19 Cash and Bank Balances
Balances with Banks
	 On Current Accounts  990.53  569.31 
	 On Unpaid Dividend Accounts  71.21  67.09 
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months  1,982.91  450.00 
Other Bank Balances  2.50  4.00 
Cheques on Hand/Remittances in Transit  49.44  1.24 
Cash on Hand  13.13  11.41 

 3,109.72  1,103.05 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

20 SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Security Deposit
Unsecured,Considered Good  87.77  32.99 
Advances Recoverable in Cash or in Kind
Unsecured Considered Good  312.34  13.14 
Loans & Advances to Related Parties
Unsecured Considered Good  -    42.43 
Other Loans & Advances (Unsecured Considered Good)
Loans/Advances to Staff  172.82  34.67 
Prepaid Expenses  417.53  223.32 
Balances with Customs, Excise & Sales Tax Authorities, etc.  1,191.86  313.49 

 2,182.32  660.04 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

21 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Unsecured,Considered Good unless Stated Otherwise
Un-amortised Premium on Forward Contracts  27.91  43.73 
Merchandise Export Incentive Scheme Licences available  108.41  3.38 
Others
Claims recoverable  1,157.97  429.98 
Export Rebate Receivables  1,504.34  437.64 
Interest Accrued on Investments  47.47  0.53 
Others  22.17  -   
Asset Held for Sale (valued at lower of cost and net realisable 
value)  4.80  -   

 2,873.07  915.26 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products
Finished goods  231,510.38  122,199.95 
Less : Excise Duty on Sales  17,913.73  8,141.17 
Sale of Services  1,813.64  -   

 215,410.29  114,058.78 
Other Operating Revenue
 -	 Scrap Sales  2,331.56  1,013.68 
 -	 Compensation Received for Loss of Profits  36.70  24.53 
Revenue from Operations (net)  217,778.55  115,096.99 

Details of Products Sold
Finished Goods Sold
a. 	 Laminates and Converted,Coated / Uncoated Paper and 

Films
 208,079.07  110,514.98 

b. 	 Cartons  2,108.72  1,900.22 
c. 	 Others  3,408.86  1,643.58 

 213,596.65  114,058.78 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

23 OTHER INCOME
Interest Income on
 	 Bank Deposits  41.06  5.69 
  	 Others  141.04  201.48 
Dividend Income on Current Investments  1,005.28  886.50 
Other Non-Operating Income 
Rent  4.75  4.81 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net)  -    12.34 
Provision for Sales Tax Written Back  79.20  -   
Profit on Sale of Current Investments  9.52  -   
Other Non Operating Income  442.01  161.82 

 1,722.86  1,272.64 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

24 COST OF RAW MATERIALS AND COMPONENTS 
CONSUMED
Inventory at the beginning of the year  3,917.32  5,125.40 
Add : Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation (Refer note 49)  4,334.42  -   
Add : Purchases  148,904.03  78,886.33 

 157,155.77  84,011.73 
Less : Inventory at the end of the year  9,871.03  3,917.32 
Cost of Raw Materials and Components Consumed  147,284.74  80,094.41 

Details of Raw Materials and Components Consumed
Paper  10,375.12  4,180.68 
Paper Board  812.90  733.68 
Films  63,713.87  40,558.25 
Inks, Adhesives and Solvents  30,544.60  17,920.73 
Polyethylene Granules  34,610.44  12,270.84 
Others  7,227.81  4,430.23 

 147,284.74  80,094.41 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND  
WORK-IN-PROCESS
Inventories at the end of the year
Work in Process  3,269.14  1,745.23 
Finished Goods  2,010.19  910.47 

 5,279.33  2,655.70 
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work in Process  1,745.23  1,768.56 
Add: Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (Refer note 49)  1,082.22  -   
Finished Goods  910.47  785.19 
Add: Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation (Refer note 49)  888.75  -   

 4,626.67  2,553.75 
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Process  (652.66)  (101.95)
Excise Duty on Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 
   	 Excise Duty on Closing Finished Goods Stock  230.87  81.65 
   	 Less: Excise Duty on Opening Finished Goods Stock  81.65  83.48 
   	 Less: Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation  

(Refer note 49)
 71.03  78.19  -    (1.83)

 (574.47)  (103.78)
Details of Inventory
Work in Process
a. 	 Laminates and Converted,Coated / Uncoated Paper and Films  3,194.01  1,650.72 
b. 	 Cartons  45.99  74.49 
c. 	 Others  29.14  20.02 

 3,269.14  1,745.23 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Salaries,Wages and Bonus  16,573.05  8,420.44 
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds  1,163.68  453.43 
Stock Appreciation Right Scheme (Refer Note 45)  25.92  -   
Staff Welfare Expenses  1,487.99  880.96 

 19,250.64  9,754.83 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

27 FINANCE COST
Interest 
     - To Banks  418.73  -   
     - To Others  216.58  14.37 
     - On Debentures  2,695.30  2,503.03 

 3,330.61  2,517.40 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

28 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Depreciation of Tangible Assets  8,554.17  3,681.59 
Amortisation of Intangible Assets  543.49  253.16 

 9,097.66  3,934.75 
In the previous year, Depreciation of ` 185.05 lacs on account of assets whose useful life is already exhausted on 
January 1, 2015 has been adjusted against General Reserve pursuant to adoption of estimated useful life of fixed 
assets as stipulated by Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013. (Refer Note 3 (b))

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

29 OTHER EXPENSES
Consumption of Stores and Consumables  2,785.41  802.31 
Power and Fuel  7,483.30  3,132.47 
Repairs to Building  487.34  303.76 
Repairs to Machinery  2,028.45  1,162.02 
Other Repairs  593.12  410.37 
Sub Contracting Expenses  1,839.89  918.10 
Insurance  317.43  177.26 
Rent  724.66  259.86 
Rates and Taxes  292.29  161.20 
Travelling and Conveyance  1,277.10  615.85 
Legal and Professional Charges *  1,052.63  596.77 
Commission-Directors  93.00  69.00 
Communication Costs  253.75  128.07 
Payment to Auditor (Refer Note 29.1)  150.97  159.99 
Donation  50.17  0.61 
Printing and Stationery  164.11  85.87 
Commission on Sales - Others  339.02  134.65 
Freight and Forwarding Expenses  3,306.17  1,960.91 
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses  57.44  15.01 
Fixed Assets Written Off  9.31  3.45 
Bank Charges  195.43  67.81 
Provision for Sales Tax  -    3.65 
Provision for Doubtful Debts  21.07  53.78 
Bad debts written off  2.19  7.81 
Foreign Exchange Loss (Net)  45.48  43.26 
Provision for Diminution in value of Current Investments  9.58  -   
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  19.82  -   
Net Loss on Sale of Current Investments  -    2.65 
Miscellaneous Expenses  3,505.61  2,047.59 

 27,104.74  13,324.08 
* Includes ` 54.37 lacs, being professional fees incurred in connection with merger of Webtech Labels Private Limited 
and Positive Packaging Industries Limited with the Company. In the previous year Professional  fees includes an 
amount of `291.97 lacs incurred in connection with acquisition of Positive Packaging Industries Limited.	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016



67th Annual Report & Accounts 2016 75

(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

29.1 Payment to Auditors  :
Auditor's Remuneration
	 Audit Fees  134.75  54.38 
	 Other Services  9.23  102.42 
In other capacity
	 Certification Fees  1.52  0.75 
Reimbursement of Expenses  5.47  2.44 

 150.97  159.99 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Profit after Tax including Exceptional Item  8,514.96  4,910.94 
Profit after Tax excluding Exceptional Item  8,769.96  4,910.94 
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (taking into 
account 28,10,000 shares with respect to Share Suspense 
Account) (Refer note 49)  75,521,934  72,711,934 
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share including 
Exceptional Item (in `)  11.27  6.75 
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share excluding 
Exceptional Item (in `)  11.61  6.75 
Nominal Value of Share (in `)  2.00  2.00 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

31 NET DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 
(EURO) TO ITS PARENT COMPANY 
M/s. Huhtavefa B.V., Netherlands. 
The particulars of dividend declared and paid to above 
shareholder are as under:
a.  	 Dividend for the year  2015  2014 
b.  	 Number of Non-resident Shareholder  1  1 
c.  	 Equity Shares held by Non-resident Shareholder (on 

record date)  50,003,997  50,003,997 
d.  	 Gross Amount of Dividend Remitted  1,400.11  1,400.11 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
a 	 Excise Duty
	 Matters in  Appeal  	 - Duty  615.03  518.11 
                           			   - Penalties  441.57  418.87 
	 Show Cause Notices 	 - Duty  25.98  44.73 
b 	 Service Tax 
	 Show Cause Notices  	 - Service Tax  18.01  72.71 
	 Matters in Appeal   	 - Service Tax  81.32  15.63 
						      - Penalties  53.05  12.92 
c 	 Matters in Appeal 	 - Custom Duty  21.23  -   
d 	 Income Tax Demands in Appeal  1,293.77  257.75 
e 	 Sales Tax Demands in Appeal  106.73  91.34 
f 	 Claims against the company not acknowledged  

as debts  65.18  65.18 
Note for (a) to (f): Future cash outflows / uncertainties, if any, in respect of the above are 
determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with various forums/ authorities.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

33 CONTRACTS REMAINING TO BE EXECUTED ON CAPITAL 
ACCOUNT AND NOT PROVIDED FOR (NET OF ADVANCES).

 2,634.40  192.64 

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

34 DISCLOSURE OF THE AMOUNTS DUE TO MICRO AND 
SMALL ENTERPRISES
(On the basis of the information and records available with the 
Management.)
The principal amount and the interest due there on remaining 
unpaid to any Micro/Small supplier
	 - Principal amount  488.42  135.45 
	 - Interest there on  49.53  29.72 
The interest paid by the buyer as above, along with the amount 
of payments made beyond the appointed date during each 
accounting year.  -    -   
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 
in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest 
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development Act 2006.  -    -   
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
end of each accounting year.  15.80  9.17 
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even 
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 
as above are actually paid to the small / micro enterprise.  49.53  29.72 

Currency Foreign Currency
in lacs

Foreign Currency
in lacs

35 DISCLOSURE OF DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

i	 Derivative Instruments Outstanding
	 Forward Exchange contracts for the foreign 

exchange exposures of receivables on 
account of export of goods.  USD  10.00  12.00

ii	 Foreign Exchange Exposures
	 Foreign Exchange exposures not covered 

by a derivative contract for payments to be 
received on account of export of goods.

 USD  222.49  58.33

 EUR  4.15  0.54

 GBP  4.29  0.97

 AED  27.20  8.66

 AUD  3.88  -

 CAD  7.14  -

iii	 Foreign Exchange exposures not covered by 
a derivative contract for payments to be made 
against revenue imports and capital imports 
creditors.

 USD  152.46  42.88

 EUR  1.70  0.41

 JPY  11.20  24.61

 GBP  0.18  0.11

(iv)	 Cash and Bank balance in foreign currency USD  0.28  -

EURO  0.00  -

GHS  0.02  -

Chinese 
Yuan  0.00  -

JPY  0.01  -
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Currency Foreign Currency
in lacs

Foreign Currency
in lacs

v	 Derivatives taken to Cover Forecast 
Exposures

	 Forward Exchange contracts taken for the 
forecast exports receivables on account of 
export  of goods & services.  USD  26.00  18.00

	 Forward Exchange contracts taken for the 
forecast capital imports.  EUR  2.77  -

vi	 Closing exchange rate at Balance Sheet 
date (In INR)

 USD  68.04  66.15
 EUR  71.09  72.02
 JPY  0.58  0.55
 GBP  83.35  98.13
 CHF  66.36  66.47
 AED  18.52  18.01
 AUD  49.01  48.35
 CAD  50.23  47.65
 GHS  16.39  17.36

vii	 Mark to market valuation loss on account 
of forward exchange contracts entered 
into to cover the forecast transactions 
pursuant to the ICAI announcement of  29th 
March 2008 on Accounting for Derivatives.  `  4.75  0.13

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

36 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIF BASIS IN 
RESPECT OF
a.	 Raw Materials 44,185.97  18,602.41

b.	 Stores, Spares-Parts and Other Materials   688.10  181.99

c.	 Capital Goods   524.05  662.01

37	 SEGMENT REPORTING
	 The Company’s sole business segment is consumer packaging and all activities of the Company are incidental to this 

sole business segment. Given this fact and that the Company services its domestic and export markets from India only, 
the financial statements reflect the information required by AS-17 Segment Reporting for the sole business segment of 
consumer packaging.

	 Secondary segments for the Group are geographic, namely domestic and exports.

	 Revenue from geographic segments is based on the domicile of customers.

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Net Sales Domestic Customers  162,145.56  92,257.25

Net Sales Export Customers  53,264.73  21,801.53

Total Net Sales  215,410.29  114,058.78

The entire business assets other than trade receivables are 
situated in India.

Trade receivables outstanding in respect of domestic segment 
as at the year end  29,557.70  16,805.47

Trade receivables outstanding in respect of export segment as 
at the year end  16,721.39  4,942.97

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

38 EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (on accrual basis)
a.	 F.O.B. Value of Exports 52,126.99 20,829.08

b.	 Others 509.28 475.03

(` in lacs)
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39	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a. Related party where control exists :
Ultimate Parent Company Huhtamaki Oyj., Finland

Holding Company Huhtavefa B.V., Netherlands

Subsidiary Company (Refer Note 49) Webtech Labels Private Limited

Positive Packaging Industries Limited (w.e.f.31 January 15)

b. Other Related Parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year :
Fellow Subsidiaries Huhtamaki Australia Ltd., Australia

Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Germany GmbH & Co. KG., Germany

Huhtamki South Africa Pty Ltd., South Africa

Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd., Thailand

Huhtamaki Finance B V, Netherlands

Positive Packaging Industries South Africa Pty Ltd (w.e.f.31 January 15)

Huhtalux S.a.r.l.

Positive Packaging United (ME) Fzco (w.e.f.31 January 15)

Primetech M.E.FZE (w.e.f. 31 January 2015)

Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Middle East LLC. (w.e.f. 31 January 2015)

Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Kenya (w.e.f. 31 January 2015)

c. Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Suresh Gupta Executive Chairman

Mr. A Venkatrangan Managing Director

	 d.	 Details of transactions with related parties that have taken place during the year :

(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

1) Ultimate Parent Company

a) Software and Expense Reimbursements Charge  125.71  43.32

b) Expense Reimbursements - Recovery  6.91  31.18

c) Due to Ultimate Parent Company  59.49  0.99

2) Holding Company

Dividend Paid

-	 Huhtavefa B.V., Netherlands  1,400.11  1,400.11

Finance Cost

-	 Huhtavefa B.V.,Netherlands  29.11  -

Loan Repaid

-	 Huhtavefa B.V., Netherlands  1,169.92  -

3) Subsidiary Company

Expense Reimbursement Recovery

-	 Webtech Labels Private Limited  -  34.35

-	 Positive Packaging Industries Limited  -  37.00

Purchase of Goods & Services

-	 Webtech Labels Private Limited  -  1.93

-	 Positive Packaging Industries Limited  -  3,862.12

Expense Reimbursement Charges

-	 Positive Packaging Industries Limited  -  7.23

Sale of Goods & Services

-	 Positive Packaging Industries Limited  -  1,268.50

Lease Rent Expenses

-	 Positive Packaging Industries Limited  -  19.04
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

4) Fellow Subsidiaries

Purchase of Goods

-	 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd, Thailand  13.09  4.45

-	 Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Germany GmbH 
& Co. KG., Germany

 0.23  -

Sale of Goods

-	 Huhtamaki Australia Ltd., Australia  139.39  376.14

-	 Positive Packaging Industries South Africa Pty Ltd  6,000.35  63.09

-	 Positive Packaging United (M.E.) FZCO  218.13  -

-	 Primetech M.E. FZE  20.68  -

-	 Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Middle East LLC.  168.59  -

-	 Huhtamaki (Vietnam) Limited  0.47  -

Issue of Debentures

-	 Huhtalux S.a.r.l.  -  38,500.00

Interest on Debentures

-	 Huhtalux S.a.r.l.  2,695.30  2,503.03

Commission Expenses on Sales

-	 Huhtamaki South Africa Ltd., South Africa  -  36.31

-	 Positive Packaging Industries South Africa (Pty) 
Limited

 63.70  -

-	 Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Kenya  9.23  -

Expense Reimbursements - Charge

-	 Huhtamaki South Africa Ltd., South Africa  -  6.64

-	 Huhtamaki (Thailand) Ltd, Thailand  0.19  -

Huhtamaki Finance B V, Netherlands - Remuneration 
paid by fellow subsidiary to Mr. Suresh Gupta as 
Senior Advisor for Huhtamaki Group

 138.86  194.33

Expense Reimbursements - Recovery

-	 Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Germany GmbH 
& Co. KG., Germany

 -  0.06

-	 Huhtamaki Finance B V, Netherlands  -  29.16

-	 Positive Packaging United (M.E.) FZCO  12.78  -

Balances due to

-	 Huhtamaki South Africa Pty Ltd., South Africa  -  1.78

-	 Huhtalux S.a.r.l. (Debentures and interest 
thereon not due)

 39,677.12  39,680.35

-	 Huhtamaki Flexible Packaging Germany GmbH 
& Co. KG., Germany

 0.23  -

-	 Webtech Labels Private Limited  -  0.95

-	 Positive Packaging Industries Limited  -  865.99

Balances due from

-	 Huhtamaki Australia Ltd., Australia  8.98  45.75

-	 Huhtamaki Finance B V, Netherlands  -  24.50

-	 Positive Packaging Industries South Africa Pty Ltd  2,464.88  41.58

-	 Positive Packaging United (M.E.) FZCO  36.79  -
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(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

-	 Primetech M.E. FZE  6.37  -

-	 Webtech Labels Private Limited  -  8.11

-	 Positive Packaging Industries Limited  -  119.55

5) Payments to Key Managerial Personnel and their 
Relatives

Remuneration Paid to Key Managerial Personnel *

Mr. Suresh Gupta, Executive Chairman  261.48  195.22

Mr. A Venkatrangan, Managing Director (including 
Stock Appreciation Rights on accrual basis)  326.48  243.82

 587.95  439.04

Dividend Paid to Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. A Venkatrangan  0.14  0.14

	 * As the future liabilities for gratuity and leave encashment are provided on an actuarial valuation basis for the Company 
as a whole, the amount pertaining to individual is not ascertainable and therefore not included above.

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

% of 

Consumption
Amount % of 

Consumption
Amount

40 CONSUMPTION OF RAW MATERIALS, PACKING 
MATERIALS AND STORES AND SPARES CONSUMED

Imported 29.59%  44,399.82 25.44%  20,577.43

Indigenous 70.41% 105,670.32 74.56%  60,319.29

100.00% 150,070.15 100.00%  80,896.72

31st December 2016 31st December 2015

41 DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 
15 (REVISED) ‘ EMPLOYEE BENEFITS’

The Company has classified various employee benefits as 
under

(i)	 Defined Contribution Plans

	 Amount recognised as an expense and included in 
“Personnel costs” for Provident Fund & ESIC contributions 
in the Profit and Loss account.  880.64  345.67

(ii)	 Defined Benefit Plans

	 The Company has classified the various benefit plans 
provided to employees as under :

	 I	 Gratuity Plan

		  Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees of the 
Company on superannuation, death and resignation, 
in terms of the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity 
Act or as per the Company’s Scheme whichever is 
more beneficial.

	 II	 Long Service Award

		  Eligible employees get an exgratia payment on 
completion of 20 years of continuous service. The 
amount is paid on retirement or on resignation.
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The following table summarises the components of the net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit & loss and the 
funded status and amount recognised in the Balance sheet for the respective plans.

(` in lacs)

Particulars Gratuity - Funded Long Service Award - 
Non Funded

2016 2015 2016 2015

I.	 Change in Benefit Obligation

	 Opening Defined Benefit Obligation  1,521.45  1,410.17  70.48  82.81

	 Interest Cost  198.26  114.51  5.81  6.73

	 Current Service Cost  199.61  88.35  1.01  4.17

	 Benefit Paid  (207.86)  (96.05)  (4.20)  (2.08)

	 Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  886.53  -  -  -

	 Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Obligations  109.39  4.47  3.97  (21.15)

	 Closing Defined Benefit Obligation  2,707.38  1,521.45  77.07  70.48

II.	 Fair Value of Plan Assets

	 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  1,516.70  1,341.46  -  -

	 Pursuant to Amalgamation (Refer Note 49)  483.29  -  -  -

	 Expected Return on Plan Assets  164.94  108.93  -  -

	 Contributions  463.80  177.90  -  -

	 Benefit Paid  (204.57)  (96.05)  -  -

	 Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets  38.25  (15.54)  -  -

	 Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year  2,462.41  1,516.70  -  -

III.	 Actual Return on Plan Assets

	 Actual Return on Plan Assets  203.19  93.39  -  -

	 Expected Return on Plan Assets  164.94  108.93  -  -

	 Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Plan Assets  38.25  (15.54)  -  -

	 Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on Obligation  (109.39)  (4.47)  (3.97)  (21.15)

IV.	 Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet

	 Defined Benefit Obligation  2,707.38  1,521.45  77.07  70.48

	 Fair Value of Plan Assets  2,462.41  1,516.70  -  -

	 Funded Status  (244.97)  (4.75)  (77.07)  (70.48)

	 Unrecognised Actuarial Gain/(Loss)  -  -  -  -

	 Net Asset / (Liability) Recognised in the
	 Balance Sheet

 (244.97)  (4.75)  (77.07)  (70.48)

V.	 Expenses Recognised in the Statement of
	 Profit and Loss

	 Current Service Cost  199.61  88.35  1.01  4.17

	 Interest Cost  198.26  5.58  5.81  6.72

	 Expected Return on Plan Assets  (164.94)  -  -  -

	 Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss to Be Recognised  71.14  20.01  3.97  (21.15)

	 Expense Recognised in Statement of
	 Profit and Loss

 304.07  113.94  10.79  (10.26)

	 The Company expects to contribute ` 278.42 lacs to Gratuity in next year (31st December 2015 : ` 99.09 lacs)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

	 The principal assumptions used in determining benefit obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below.

Particulars 2016 2015

Discount Rate 7.29% 8.12%

Rate of Return on Plan Assets 7.29% 8.25%

Salary Escalation 5.50% 6.25%

Employee Turnover Years % %

0-2 12% 12%

3-4 5% 5%

5-9 2.5% 2.5%

10 & Above 1% 1%

Estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment.

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows.

Particulars Gratuity

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Amount in 
lacs

% Amount in 
lacs

%

Investment Value in Unit Linked Plans  787.74 32%  653.27 43%

Investment Value in Non Unit Linked Plans  806.39 33%  749.08 49%

Investment Value in Special Deposit Scheme of Bank Of Baroda  113.84 5%  114.35 8%

Insurer Managed Funds  754.44 31%  - 0%

Total  2,462.41 100%  1,516.70 100%

	 Amounts for the current and previous periods are as follows.

Particulars Gratuity

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Defined Benefit Obligation  2,707.38  1,521.45  1,410.17  1,228.39  1,274.36

Plan Assets  2,462.41  1,516.70  1,341.46  1,228.39  1,274.36

Excess of Defined Benefit Obligation over Fair 
Value of Plan Assets. 

 (244.97)  (4.75)  (68.71)  -  -

Experience Adjustment on Plan Assets  38.25  (15.54)  39.70  -  (77.19)

Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities  64.66  21.32  (31.57)  14.71  30.93

 Long Service Award

Particulars 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

Defined Benefit Obligation  77.07  70.48  82.81  79.74  85.65

Experience Adjustment  (6.53)  (16.93)  -  -  -

Excess of Defined Benefit Obligation over Fair 
Value of Plan Assets. 

 77.07  70.48  82.81  79.74  85.65
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016

(` in lacs)

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

42 LEASES 
The Company has taken certain Office Premises and residential 
facilities under Operating Lease arrangements.

There are no restrictions imposed by lease arrangements. 
There are no sublease.

Future lease commitments in respect of non-cancellable 
operating leases are as follows :

Within one year  240.79  225.12

After one year but not more than five years  270.05  467.80

More than 5 years  102.12  145.16

 612.96  838.08

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

43 EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY (on accrual basis)
a.	 Travelling Expenses  155.15  75.56

b.	 Commission on Sales  235.04  127.74

c.	 Service Charges for Technical Services  37.93  25.82

d.	 Professional Fees  0.27  9.61

e.	 Overseas Branch Office Expenses  224.63  -

f.	 Interest and Bank Charges  268.65  -

g.	 Others  211.50  49.99

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

44 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
The details of expenses incurred on in-house research and 
development activities during the year ended 31 December 
2016 as certified by the management are as follows :

Total Revenue Expenditure *  104.32  84.01

Total Capital Expenditure **  1.72  2.17

Total Research & Development Expenses  106.04  86.18

	 * Revenue Expenditure of `104.32 lacs has been grouped under various expense heads of the Financial Statements.

	 ** Additions to Fixed Assets in Note no.12 includes ` 1.72 lacs towards Capital Expenditure incurred for Company’s in 
house R & D facilities.

45	 During the year, at the General Meeting, the shareholders of the Company had unanimously passed Special Resolution 
on 10 May 2016 to grant stock appreciation rights (SARs) to the eligible employees of the Company. Pursuant to this 
resolution, Huhtamaki PPL Limited Employee Phantom Stock Scheme 2015 has been formulated and adopted. In terms 
of the above Scheme, 33,000 SARs have been granted to the Managing Director.

	 The SARs will be settled in cash and vest after 2 years from the date of allotment as per the terms and conditions of the 
grant.

	 Details of activity under SARs is summarised below:

Particulars  31 December 2016

Outstanding at the beginning of the year Nil
Granted during the year  33,000
Forfeited during the year Nil
Exercised during the year Nil
Expired during the year Nil
Outstanding at the end of the year  33,000
Exercisable at the end of the year Nil
Exercise Price Nil
Remaining Contractual Life 13.5 months
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46	 During the current year, in terms of the Share Purchase Agreement between the Company, Positive Packaging Industries 
Limited (‘Positive’) and erstwhile owners of Positive, the closing adjustment in connection with acquisition of Positive was 
agreed upon, resulting in an amount of ̀  175 lacs being receivable by the Company from erstwhile owners of Positive. This 
amount and expenses of ` 63.77 lacs, which were directly related to Investment in Positive have been taken to General 
Reserve, on account of amalgamation of Positive with the Company.

47	 The Company has incurred ` 57.44 lacs (Previous Year: ` 15.01 lacs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility activities. 
Further, no amount has been spent on construction/acquisition of an asset of the Company. The amount spent in Cash 
out of the above is ` 44.51 lacs (Previous Year: ` 15.01 lacs).

	 The amount required to be spent under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year 2016 is ` 148.87 lacs 
(Previous Year:` 144.89 lacs) i.e. 2% of average net profits for last three financial years, calculated as per section 198 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

48	 The Company has set up a Flexible Packaging Manufacturing Unit in Guwahati, Assam and a Pressure Sensitive Label 
Manufacturing Unit in Sikkim, which have commenced commercial production in last week of March 2017, to better 
service its customers based in North East India.

49	 Amalgamations

	 Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement under section 391 to 394 read with Sections 100 to 103 of the Companies 
Act, 1956, Section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013 and any amendments thereto or re-enactments for amalgamation 
of erstwhile Positive Packaging Industries Limited (‘Positive’) and erstwhile Webtech Labels Private Limited (‘Webtech’) 
with the Company as sanctioned by the National Company Law Tribunal on 22nd February, 2017, all assets, liabilities and 
reserves of Positive and Webtech were transferred to and vested in the Company with effect from appointed date being 
30th January, 2015 in case of Positive and 1st April, 2015 in case of Webtech. The Schemes became effective on 1st April, 
2017 on filing the National Company Law Tribunal Order with the Registrar of Companies. Positive was engaged in the 
business of Consumer Packaging and Webtech was engaged in business of manufacturing of Pressure Sensitive Labels. 
The Schemes have accordingly been given effect to in these financial statements.

	 The amalgamation has been accounted for under the “Pooling of Interest Method” as prescribed under Accounting Standard 
14 - “Accounting for Amalgamations” (AS 14) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and as notified 
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies Accounts Rules 2014. Accordingly and 
giving effect in compliance of the Scheme of Arrangement all the assets, liabilities and reserves of Positive and Webtech, 
now considered as part of the Company, were recorded in the books of the Company at their carrying amounts and in the 
same form as at appointed date as was appearing in the books of Positive and Webtech.

	 On 6th April, 2017, in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement 28,10,000 Equity shares of ` 2 each of the Company have 
been allotted to the shareholders of Webtech for 10,000 shares held by them in the share capital of Webtech in the ratio of 
281:1, after cancellation of 10,408 shares of Webtech held by the Company. These shares have been considered for the 
purpose of calculation of earnings per share. Positive being a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company neither any shares 
were required to be issued nor any consideration was required to paid.

	 The difference of net assets value of transferor companies after adjusting reserves and Investment already made in 
Transferor Companies is transferred to the respective reserves as detailed here under:-

(` in lacs)
Particulars Positive Webtech Total
Total Assets  71,657.69  9,022.79  80,680.48

Total Liabilities  41,167.33  4,291.64  45,458.97

Net Book Value (A)  30,490.36  4,731.15  35,221.51
Capital Redemption Reserve considered as Capital Redemption 
Reserve of the Company  897.22  -  897.22

Securities Premium considered as Securities Premium of the Company  18,358.87  3,766.35  22,125.22

General Reserve considered as General Reserve of the Company  3,000.00  -  3,000.00

Profit and Loss Account considered as Profit and Loss Account of the 
Company  3,750.92  932.76  4,683.68

Capital Reserve considered as Capital Reserve of the Company  -  30.00  30.00

Total (B)  26,007.01  4,729.11  30,736.12
Difference of Net Book Value and Reserves (C = A-B)  4,483.35  2.04  4,485.39
Cancellation of Company’s Investment (D)  50,816.15  3,935.33  54,751.48

Difference transferred to reserves (C-D) (46,332.80) (3,933.29) (50,266.09)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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	 The above shortfall has been adjusted pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamations as follows:-

Particulars  ` in lacs

Capital Redemption Reserve  1,597.22

Securities Premium Account  43,281.20

General Reserve  5,387.67

Total  50,266.09

50	 The accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2016 were earlier approved by the Board of Directors at 
its meeting held on 21st February, 2017 and reported upon by the statutory auditors vide their report dated 21st February 
2017.  The said accounts did not include the effect of the Schemes of Amalgamation of Positive and Webtech with the 
Company which were then pending for requisite approvals. The Company has since received the requisite approvals for 
merger of Positive and Webtech with the Company. As a result, the Schemes have became effective on 1st April 2017, with 
retrospective effect from the Appointed date (30 January 2015 in case of Positive and 1st April 2015 in case of Webtech). 
The Board of Directors have decided to revise the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2016 to 
incorporate the effect of the merger and accordingly these accounts have been prepared in supersession of the accounts 
previously adopted, as referred to above, for giving consequential effect to the Scheme of Amalgamation.

51	 The Company has accrued Stamp duty payable on account of merger and transfer fees payable for transfer of Land from 
Positive to the Company in these accounts, as these expenses have arose on account of merger of Positive and Webtech 
with the Company. The Company has disclosed the same as Exceptional Item.

52	 Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 8 November 2016 to 30 December 
2016

 Amount in `

Particulars  Specified 
Bank Notes 

Other 
Denomination 

notes 

 Total

Closing Cash in hand as on 8 November 2016  1,128,000  533,936  1,661,936

Add: Permitted receipts -  4,038,507  4,038,507

Less: Permitted Payments -  3,499,178  3,499,178

Less: Amount deposited in Banks  1,128,000  -  1,128,000

Closing Cash in hand as on 30 December 2016  -  1,073,265  1,073,265

53	 In view of the Amalgamations as referred to in Note 49, the figures for the current year are not comparable with the 
corresponding figures of the previous year and further since the Company does not have any subsidiaries, hence no 
Consolidated Financial Statements are required to be prepared.

54	 Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary, to conform to this year classifications.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31st December 2016
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HUHTAMAKI PPL Limited 
 

Business Responsibility Report for the Financial Year 2016 
[Pursuant to Regulation 34 (2) (f) of the SEBI Listing Regulations] 

 
SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY  
 
1. Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company:  L21011MH1950FLC145537 
2. Name of the Company: Huhtamaki PPL Limited (HPPL) 
3. Registered address: Unit No. 12A-06, B-Wing, 13th Floor, Parinee Crescenzo, Plot Nos. C-38 & C-39, 
                                          G” Block, Behind MCA, BKC, Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051, Maharashtra, India 
4. Website: www.ppl.huhtamaki.com  
5. E-mail id: investor.communication@ppl.huhtamaki.com  
6. Financial Year reported: 2016 
7. Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial activity code-wise): 
 

Huhtamaki PPL Limited is engaged in Manufacture of Flexible Packaging Material.  
 

*Industrial Group  Description 

32009 Manufacturing and sale of Flexible Packaging Material 

*As per National Industrial Classification  
 
8. List three key products/services that the Company manufactures/provides (as in Balance Sheet) 
 

Sr. No. Name and Description of main products/services  

1. Flexible Packaging Material 

2. Labels 

3. Rotogravure Printing Cylinder  

  
9. Total number of locations where business activity is undertaken by the Company: 

 
(a) Number of International Locations (Provide details of major 5):    
The Company has Liaison Offices in London & Ghana.  

 
(b) Number of National Locations: 
The Company has its Corporate Office in Mumbai and its manufacturing units are located at Thane, 
Taloja, Ambernath, Mahape, Silvassa, Hyderabad, Rudrapur, Bengaluru, Parwanoo, Guwahati and 
Gangtok. Further, the Company has Customer Support/Sales Offices in Mumbai, New Delhi, Kolkata 
and Bengaluru. 

 
10. Markets served by the Company – Local/State/National/International: In addition to the Indian 

markets, the Company also serves North America (US, Canada and Mexico), Central America, Africa, 
Middle East, European and Asia Pacific markets. 

 

http://www.ppl.huhtamaki.com/
mailto:investor.communication@ppl.huhtamaki.com
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SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY  
 
1. Paid up Capital: Rs. 145.42 Million 
2. Total Turnover: Rs. 21547 Million  
3. Total Profit after Taxes: Rs. 858 Million  
4. Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of profit after tax (%): 0.66% 
5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been incurred: 

 Promotion of Education and Sanitation of School  

 Preventive Health Care 

 Community Development  

 Livelihood Enhancement 
 

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS 
 
1. Subsidiary Company / Companies 
 Nil - Pursuant to the Order of the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) dated 22nd February, 2017, 

two subsidiaries of the Company have been merged with itself, hence the Company does not have 
any subsidiaries. 

 
2. Participation of Subsidiary Company / Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent 

Company? If yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s). 
  Not Applicable  
 
3.  Participation of any other entity / entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does 

business with; participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage 
of such entity / entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%] 

 No, since majority of its suppliers/customers are big Corporates/MNCs, who have their own BR 
initiatives. 

  
SECTION D: BR INFORMATION 
 
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR 

(a)Details of the Director/Director responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies 
1. DIN Number: 05294659 

      2.  Name: Mr. A Venkatrangan 
3. Designation: Managing Director 

 
(b) Details of the BR head 

Sr. No. Particulars Details 

1 DIN Number Mr. A. Venkatrangan, Managing Director 
oversees the BR implementation. However, the 
Company does not have a BR Head as of now. 
 

2 Name  

3 Designation  

4 Telephone Number  

5 E-mail Id 
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2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies?  

 (a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N) 
 

SR. 
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P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 

1.  Do you have a policy/ 
policies for  

Y Y 
 

Y Y Y 
 

Y N Y N 

2.  Has the policy being 
formulated in 
consultation with the 
relevant stakeholders?  

Y The policy 
is 

embedded 
in the 

Company’s 
quality and 

environ-
ment 

policies 
which inter 
alia, relate 
to safe and 
sustainable 

products 
 

Y Y The policy 
is 

embedded 
in the 

Company’s 
Code of 
Business 
Conduct, 

HR policies 
and 

various 
other HR 
practices 

 

- - Y - 

3.  Does the policy conform 
to any national / 
international standards? 
If yes, specify?  

Policies are prepared ensuring adherence to all applicable 
laws and in line with national & international standards, 
wherever applicable.  

4.  Has the policy being 
approved by the Board?  
Is yes, has it been signed 
by MD/ owner/ CEO/ 
appropriate Board 
Director?  

 

All mandatory Polices under the Indian laws and regulations 
have been adopted by the Board and signed by Chairman. 
Other operational internal policies are approved by 
management and signed by the Managing Director. 
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5.  Does the company have 
a specified committee 
of the Board/ Director/ 
Official to oversee the 
implementation of the 
policy?  

The Company has a well-established internal governance 
structure to oversee the implementation of various policies.   

6.  Indicate the link for the 
policy to be viewed 
online?  

Mandatory Policies viz. CSR Policy, Insider Trading Policy, 
Code of Conduct are available at 
http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-
india/policies.pdf. All other policies viz. employee related 
policies are available on Company’s internal network. 

7.  Has the policy been 
formally communicated 
to all relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders?  

Yes. Polices are communicated to internal stakeholders and 
the same available on the Company’s intranet. Wherever 
required, the Polices are also communicated to our external 
stakeholders and made available on Company’s website. 

8.  Does the company have 
in-house structure to 
implement the policy/ 
policies?  

Yes, the Company has an in-house structure with clearly 
defined roles and responsibilities which periodically reviews 
implementation of various policies.  

9.  Does the Company have 
a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to 
the policy/ policies to 
address stakeholders’ 
grievances related to 
the policy/ policies?  

Yes, each of the Policies formulated by the Company have an 
in-built grievance and redressal mechanism. 

10.  Has the company 
carried out independent 
audit/ evaluation of the 
working of this policy by  
an internal or external 
agency?  

The Quality, Safety & Health and Environmental Policies are 
subject to internal and external audits as part of certification 
process and ongoing periodic assessments. Other policies are 
periodically evaluated for their efficacy through internal audit 
mechanism.  

 
3. Governance related to BR 
  

(a)  Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to 
assess the BR Performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, annually, more than 1 
year. 
 
This is first time the Company is publishing the Business Responsibility Report. In future, the 
Company will assess the BR performance annually.  
 

http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf
http://www.huhtamaki.com/web/flexible-packaging-india/policies.pdf
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(b) Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? What is hyperlink for viewing this 
report? How frequently it is published?  
 
The Company is publishing the BR Report for the first time for the year ended 31 December, 
2016.  

 
SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE 
 
Principle 1: Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and 
Accountability: 
 
1. Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the Company? Yes / No. Does it 

extend to the Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / Others ? 
 

At Huhtamaki-PPL Limited (HPPL), we believe that we are trustees of all our stakeholders including 
the society in which we exist, shareholders, employees and their families, customers, suppliers, 
contractors, the Government, et al.. We believe that we owe it to all stakeholders to conduct our 
business in line with sound ethical standards. The Company has adopted a “HPPL - Code of Conduct” 
and HPPL - Code of Ethics” with the underlying philosophy of conducting its business in a fair & 
ethical manner as enshrined by our values and beliefs. This helps in creating a work environment that 
is conducive to all our employees/associates.  

 
2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what 

percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 
words or so. 

 
During the year under review, the Company has not received any complaint under the investigation 
mechanism.  
 

Principle 2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to 
sustainability throughout their life cycle: 
 
1. List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental 

concerns, risks and /or opportunities. 
 

HPPL manufactures products as per specifications of its customers and strives to ensure that 
products supplied are in conformity with customer’s specifications, from safe and legally permissible 
raw materials and strict quality standards and controls are followed. The Company is expanding and 
strengthening its market position, balancing commercial ambitions with environmental concern.  

 
HPPL is environmentally conscious and is committed to creating, maintaining and ensuring a safe & 
clean environment.  
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2. Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)? 

 
(a) If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in 

about 50 words or so. 
 

The Company has manufacturing locations across India and sources all its manpower requirement 
locally & strives to source majority of its requirements from local suppliers and transporters, in 
order to develop and sustain local communities/partner in the Supply chain.    

 
3. Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, 

including communities surrounding their place of work? 
 

(a) If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small 
vendors? 

 
HPPL always strives to procure materials & avail services from local vendors/suppliers, without 
compromising on quality & products. Company’s Supplier selection, assessment and evaluation 
process includes elements of sustainability. This includes initial supplier survey, continuous risk 
assessments and audits.  

 
4. Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of 

recycling of products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so.  

 
Due to the nature of our business, we utilize resources like energy, water and other secondary 
resources and have robust processes and systems in place to identify, quantify and reduce such 
impact on the environment.  

 
Principle 3 - Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees 
 

1. Total number of employees : 3546 as on 31st December, 2016 
 

2. Total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis : 1346 
 

3. Number of permanent women employees : 201 
 

4. Number of permanent employees with disabilities : Nil 
 

5. An employee association that is recognized by management : Bharatiya Kamgar Karmachari 
Mahasangha and Vista Film Packaging Kamgar Union 

 
6. Percentage of permanent employees who are members of the recognized employee 

association : 18 % 
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7. Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual 

harassment in the last financial year and pending, as on the end of the financial year :  
 

Sr. 

No. 

Category No. of complaints filed 

during the financial year 

No. of complaints 

pending as on end 

of the financial 

year 

1.  Child labour/forced 
labour/involuntary labour 

None None 

2.  Sexual Harassment One None 

3. Discriminatory employment None None 

 
8. What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill up-gradation 

training in the last year? 
a. Permanent Employees – 85%  
b. Permanent Women Employees – 63% 
c. Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees – 0% 
d. Employees with Disabilities - Nil 

 
Principle 4 - Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, 
especially those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalised. 
 

1. Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?  
 
Yes, the Company has mapped its internal and external stakeholders in a structured way and 
carries out engagements with investors, employees, customers, suppliers, business partners, 
government/regulatory authorities, etc.  
 
The Company also engages with its identified stakeholders on an on-going basis through a 
constructive process. The Company follows a system of timely feedback and response through 
formal and informal channels of communication to ensure that the stakeholder information 
remains current and updated.  
 

2. Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized 
stakeholders? 
 
Yes, Company has identified marginalized and disadvantaged groups through need assessment 
and engagement with local communities. The marginalized and disadvantaged communities we 
work with include tribal villages and economically backward sections of the society, who are in 
great need of care and protection.  
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3. Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, 

vulnerable and marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. 
 
The Company goes beyond its business activities to create social impact through its diverse 
initiatives, and is working towards improving lives of marginalised and vulnerable communities. 
We have taken initiatives in specific areas of social development that would include providing 
infrastructure facilities for primary & secondary education/schools, skills development, 
vocational training, health & hygiene, etc. which are mainly focused around communities, 
around our manufacturing locations spread across the country. For specific details, please refer 
to Report on Corporate Social Responsibility. 
 

Principle 5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights 
 

1.  Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the 
Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others? 
 
The Company does not have a stated Human Rights Policy.  However, most of the aspects are 
covered in the Company’s “Code of Ethics and Behaviour”, “Sexual Harassment Policy” and 
various HR policies/practices. 
  

2. How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what 
percent was satisfactorily resolved by the management? 
 

While all stakeholders letters/grievances are attended promptly, there was 1 stakeholder 
complaint received during the year which was resolved promptly. Further, there are 2 
stakeholder complaints carried forward from the previous year, which are pending before SEBI 
for disposal/hearing. 
 

Principle 6 - Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment 
 

1.  Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/others. 

  
 The Company follows the broad Environment Protection guidelines laid down by the Huhtamaki 

Group and adheres to all Environment laws, as applicable for all its locations. However, the same 
is not applicable to suppliers/contractors, since many of them have their own internal 
guidelines/policies. 

 
2.  Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as 

climate change, global warming, etc? Yes/ No If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc. 
 
Environmental conservation is high on the Company’s agenda . The Company is conscious of its 
responsibility towards creating, maintaining and ensuring a safe and clean environment for 
sustainable development and take initiatives like installation of solar power, re-cycling & 
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conservation of water, reduction of wastages, innovations packaging solutions, etc.,  to reduce 
the adverse effects on the environment. .  
 

3. Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks? Y/N 
 
Yes, identification and assessment of potential environmental risks are covered under “Code of 
Conduct” and “Code of Ethics and Behavior” of the Company. Once risks are identified, steps are 
taken to measure & mitigate the same. 

 
Employees are expected to actively contribute to HPPL’s commitment to providing a healthy and 
safe workplace and to respect the environment and sustainability while carrying out all business 
operations. The company strives to provide a healthy and safe Workplace for its employees, in 
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The aim is to prevent accidents and mitigate 
health and safety risks with action programs. These action programmes are publicly 
communicated and continuous training is undertaken as per programs. Employees are required 
to comply with all workplace safety and environment related guidelines. 
 
HPPL aims to be an environmentally friendly company. The company aims at improving its 
performance through action programmes focusing on minimizing natural resource utilisation, 
optimizing process efficiency, applying the best available techniques and practices, and reducing 
solid waste generation, effluent discharges and emissions into the air. Above all the company 
actively supports, through appropriate communication and training, each individual's 
responsibility in environmental performance. HPPL will always comply with all government and 
statutory requirements on environmental protection. 
 

4. Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide 
details thereof, in about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance 
report is filed? 
 

  No 
 
5. Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on – clean technology, energy efficiency, 

renewable energy, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc. 
 
As per the Company’s Code of Ethics and Behaviour, employees are expected to actively 
contribute to HPPL’s commitment to providing a healthy and safe workplace and to respect the 
environment and sustainability, while carrying out all business operations. 
 

6. Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by 
CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being reported? 
 
Yes, emission & waste generated by company are within the permissible limit as given by 
Pollution control Boards of respective states where the company operates. 
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7. Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not 
resolved to satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year. 
 
NIL  

 
Principle 7 - Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a 
responsible manner 
 

1. Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those 
major ones that your business deals with : 
 
a) Indian Flexible Packaging & Folding Carton Manufacturers (IFCA) 

b) Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry (BCCI) 

 
2. Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement 

of public good? Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas (drop box: Governance and 
Administration, Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, Water, Food 
Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others) 
 
HPPL works very closely with Industry Associations to advocate and pursue various causes that 
are in larger interests of industry, economy, society and the public.  
 

Principle 8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development 
 

1. Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related 
to Principle 8? If yes details thereof. 
 
At HPPL, we believe in giving back to the society in some measure what we have gained from it. 
Through our various initiatives, we are committed to address issues relating to basic education, 
child welfare, women empowerment, community welfare,  health and hygiene and skill education 
on sustainable basis for the society, as a whole. 

 
HPPL has taken a holistic approach towards the development of the deprived groups of the 
society. The Company works in the areas of education, vocational skills, training and 
empowerment of women, development of women, development of children and preservation 
and sustenance of environment. 
 
HPPL have formulated policies and codes like “Code of Conduct”, “Code of Ethics and Behavior” 
and “Corporate Social Responsibility Policy” etc. which aims at inclusive growth and equitable 
development. 
 

https://www.google.co.in/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwiZ1dv1v63TAhXLl5QKHVEPBjoQFggnMAA&url=http%3A%2F%2Fifca.net.in%2Fpffca-star2011-winners.php&usg=AFQjCNFtHA2xpZIOAojrOe104L3jHBa16A&sig2=DSV2fADj35VQWLE6FtuyWw
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During the financial year 2016, the Company spent on following projects under Corporate Social 
Responsibility:  

 

Sr. 
No  

CSR Project or Activity 
identified 

Sector in which 
the Project is 
covered 

Projects or programs 
1) Local Area or other  
2) Specify the states or 
district where project or 
Programme were 
undertaken 
 

Amount 
spent on 
the 
projects 
or 
programs 
 

1. Rural Electrification  Rural 
Development  

Hyderabad  (Telangana) 10 

2. Installation of Water 
Purifier/Coolers, education 
material, Playground 
equipment., solar panels 
with UPS,    Computers in 
Schools and Painting in 
School. 

Promotion of  
education  
 

Thane (Maharashtra) 
Silvassa (U T of Dadra & 
Nagar Haveli, Silvassa)  
Rudrapur (Uttarakhand) 

33 

3. Children education & skill 
development, Scholarship 
to economically weaker 
students. 

Promotion of  
education  
 

Thane (Maharashtra) 
Rudrapur (Uttarakhand) 

4 

4. Providing Beds in hospitals, 
Medical Kit with general 
Medicine along with other 
First-Aid materials. 

Promoting 
Health care 
including 
preventive 
healthcare 

Rudrapur (Uttarakhand) 2 

5. Distribution of school 
uniforms, Felicitation of 
10th & 12th Std students. 

Promotion of  
education  
 

Khopoli (Maharashtra) 1 

6. Donation of garbage tipper 
for waste collection in 
villages. 

Rural 
Development 
 

Khopoli (Maharashtra) 6 

7. Providing ceiling fans & 
Playground equipments in 
Schools.  

Promotion of  
education  
 

Taloja 
(Maharashtra) 

2 

 
2. Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/external 

NGO/government structures/any other organization? 
 
At HPPL, CSR programmes are led by respective Plant/Location Heads, located across the country 
through their in-house team.   
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3.  Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?  
        
 Yes, various projects undertaken under the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives 

are subject to the impact assessment to ensure that expected results of projects/ initiatives are 
achieved.   

 
4. What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR 

and the details of the projects undertaken? 
 

During the year, the Company has spent Rs.5.80 million towards various CSR activities. The 
project wise details are provided in Annexure 5 – Annual Report on CSR activities. 

 
5. Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully 

adopted by the community? Please explain in 50 words, or so. 
 

We have been actively taking initiatives for Community Development. Women, children and 
backward section of the society are our target groups and we target to ensure their well being 
and development through education, income generation and health programmes.  

 
Principle 9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a 
responsible manner: 
 

1. What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial 
year. 
 
No customer/ consumer complaints are pending as on the end of the financial year.  At HPPL 
integrity is a given and not negotiable. It is essential to be honest with customers, treat them 
with respect and dignity and promise only what can be delivered. Satisfied customers are the 
key to HPPL’s success. HPPL aims to earn customers’ continued loyalty every day by treating 
them fairly, delivering the products and services they want and exceeding their expectations. 
 

2. Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is 
mandated as per local laws? 

 
The Company adheres to all the applicable regulations regarding product labeling and displays 
relevant information as prescribed under the law & as per customer’s 
specifications/instructions. The Company manufactures/supplies packaging materials as per 
customers specifications. The requirements relating to labelling are not applicable to the 
Company, but to the customers that we serve. 
 

3. Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, 
irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive behavior during the last five years and pending 
as on end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. 
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No, there are no cases filed by any stakeholder during last five years regarding unfair trade 
practices, irresponsible advertising and/or anti-competitive behavior. 

 
4.  Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends? 

 
Growth and new product development is driven by the Company’s Innovation Program (NASP) 
which helps our customers in two areas; Firstly, New Products, including incremental ideas, 
which are based on upgraded technology processes, connect with our customers need for 
adding value to their products and offering benefits to their consumers. Secondly, our NASP 
Team continuously work on solutions which offer cost advantages without compromising on 
performance, based on customers feedback. 
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